



OTTAWA WOMEN'S CANADIAN CLUB

Constitution and By-Laws

REPORTS OF WORK DONE

- AND --

Roll of Members



HER EXCELLENCY, THE DUCHESS OF DEVONSHIRE

Officers and Executive Committee.

HONORARY PRESIDENT. LADY BORDEN.

1916-17.

President:

Mrs. W. E. Hodgins.

Vice-Presidents:

Mrs. J. A. Wilson.

Mrs. W. M. SOUTHAM.

Honorary Secretary:

April-October, 1916,

Mrs. K. N. MacFee.

October 1916, to April, 1917, Mrs. Herbert I. Thomas.

RS. MERBERT I. THOMAS
Honorary Treasurer:

April to December, 1916,

Miss Edith Wilson.

December, 1916 to April, 1917, Mrs. R. A. A. Johnston.

Council:

LADY FOSTER.

Mrs. A. J. Freiman.

MISS FLORENCE BURT.

Mrs. Herbert I. Thomas.

Until October, 1916, succeeded by

Mrs. K. N. Macfee.

1917-18.

President:

MRS. W. E. HODGINS.

Vice-Presidents:

LADY FOSTER.

Mrs. W. M. Southam.

Honorary Secretary:

Mrs. Herbert I. Thomas. 253 Augusta St.

Honorary General Secretary:

For Committee Work.

Mrs. J. C. Galway.

46 Leonard Ave.

Honorary Treasurer:

Mrs. R. A. A. Johnston. 197 Bronson Ave.

Council:

Mrs. J. A. Cameron.

Mrs. A. J. Freiman.

Mrs. P. M. Grimes.

MISS FLORENCE BURT.

Constitution and By-Laws

CONSTITUTION.

- 1. This Club shall be called "THE OTTAWA WOMEN'S CANADIAN CLUB."
- 2. The purpose of this Club shall be to foster patriotism and to encourage among women a deeper and more serious interest in the institutions, history and resources of Canada, as well as to bring before them the leading questions of the day, both at home and abroad, and to endeavour to unite Canadian women in such work as may be desirable and expedient for the welfare and progress of the Dominion.
- 3. Neither political parties nor religious denominations shall be recognized in the business or membership of the Club, loyalty and patriotism being alone required.
 - 4. There shall be two classes of members: Honorary and Active.
 - (a) Honorary members shall be appointed by the Executive.
- (b) The wife of the Governor General shall, with her consent, be Honorary Patroness of the Club.
- (c) The wife of the Prime Minister shall, with her consent, be Honorary President.
- 5. (a) Any woman who is in sympathy with the objects of the Club shall be eligible for Active membership.
- (b) The Annual Fee shall be one dollar, payable after the Annual Meeting to the Homorary Treasurer, who will issue a membership ticket, good until the next Annual Meeting.
- 6. (a) The officers of the Club shall be a President, two Vice-Presidents, an Honorary Secretary, an Honorary General Secretary for Committee Work, and an Honorary Treasurer. The Executive of the Club shall be the officers with 4 members elected at the Annual Meeting, the Conveners of Standing Committees, and the immediate Past President ex officio.
- (b) Standing Committees may be formed by the Executive to carry on the work of the Club. The Conveners of these Committees shall be appointed by the Executive and shall then become members of that body.
 - 7. All officers must be members of the Club of at least one year's standing.
- S. This Constitution may be altered or amended at any Annual Meeting, provided that notice of the proposed alteration or amendment, together with the names of the Proposer and Seconder, shall have been given in writing to the Secretary, at least one mouth prior to the Annual Meeting; and provided further, that at least three clear weeks' notice in the manner aforesaid, together with a copy of the proposed alteration or amendment shall have been sent to each member of the Club.
- When any doubt arises as to the procedure to be followed at any meeting of the Club, Bourinot shall be the accepted authority.

BY-LAWS.

- The meetings of the Club shall be General Meetings and Business Meetings.
- (a) General Meetings shall be for the purpose of hearing lectures, addresses, etc., and shall be held whenever the Executive Committee considers it advisable.
- (b) The Annual Meeting shall be a business meeting, and shall be held in the 3rd week in April.
- (c) A Special Business Meeting may be called whenever the Executive Committe doems it necessary, or on a requisition being presented to the Secretary stating the matter to be discussed, and signed by at least 20 bona fide members.
- (d) One week's printed or written notice shall be required for the calling of all business meetings of the Club.
- 2. Only paid up bona fide members may vote at the Annual Meeting, and no voting by proxy will be allowed. Bona fide members to be interpreted as members of at least 3 months' standing.
- 3. Nomination papers for officers and the four members of the Executive, shall be sent to bona fide members by a Committee of five elected at a previous general or business meeting, in order that such nomination papers may be returned to the Committee one month before the Annual Meeting.
- 4. The officers and four members shall be elected by ballot at the Annual Meeting and shall hold office until the next Annual Meeting.
- 5. Any member of the Executive Committee remaining absent from six consecutive meetings, without notifying the Honorary Secretary of reason of absence, shall forfeit her position, and the vacancy shall be filled by the Executive Committee.
- 6. In the event of vacancies occurring during the year in the Executive, from any cause whatever, the remaining members of the Executive shall have power to fill the same from among the Active members of the Club.
- 7. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Club. She shall preside at all meetings of the Club, and of the Executive, and ex officio be a member of all committees. In the event of a tie she shall have the casting vote.
- S. In the absence of the President all her duties shall be performed by the First, or in her absence, by the Second Vice-President, and in case the office of President becomes vacant from any cause, the First Vice-President shall become President until the next Annual Meeting.
- 9. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to keep correct minutes of all meetings of the Club and of the Executive, to conduct the correspondence of the Club, to send out all notices of meetings and to carry out the instructions of the Executive.
- 10. The Treasurer shall receive all monies, pay all accounts passed by the Executive and generally attend to the financial affairs of the Club. All cheques shall be signed by the Treasurer and counter-signed by the President. Cheques for deposit may be endorsed by the Treasurer or Secretary alone. The financial year of the Club shall end on March 31st.
- 11. No expense of any kind shall be incurred, and no new work shall be undertaken by any Committee, unless the same shall have first been approved of by the Executive.

- 12. The books, vouchers and accounts of the Treasurer shall be audited before each Annual Meeting by a duly qualified chartered accountant, to be appointed by the Executive.
- 13. (a) A quorum for an Annual or Special Business Meeting of the Club shall be 25 members
 - (b) A quorum for a meeting of the Executive shall be five.
 - 14. (a) The order of procedure at a general meeting shall be:
 - (1) Necessary notices.
 - (2) Introduction of speaker.
 - (3) Lecture or address.
 - (4) Thanks to Speaker.
- (5) New business, of which notice has been sent to the Executive, who will notify the members.
 - (6) National Anthem.
 - (b) The order of business at the Annual Meeting shall be:-
 - (1) Calling to order.
 - (2) Minutes of previous Annual Meeting.
 - (3) Correspondence.
 - (4) President's Remarks.
 - (5) Annual report of the Secretary.
 - (6) Annual report of the Treasurer.
- (7) Alterations or amendments to the Constitution and By-laws, of which due notice has been given in accordance with Clause S, of the Constitution.
 - (8) Election by ballot of officers and four other members.
 - (9) General Business.
 - (10) The National Anthem.
 - (c) The order at a special meeting shall be:-
 - (1) Calling to order.
 - (2) Special business for which the meeting was called.
 - (3) The National Anthem.
- 15. Any member changing address must notify the same to the Secretary in writing. Failing such intimation, all notices to her old address will be regarded as duly delivered.
- 16. Out of town visitors will be admitted to the General Meetings on payment of twenty-five cents. Guests may be admitted by permission of the President.
- 17. The by-laws may be altered or amended at any business meeting of the Club, provided that such alteration or amendment shall be in the hands of the Secretary, in writing, one month before such business meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE HONORARY SECRETARY.

Madam Chairman and Members of the O.W.C.C.—

It is with no spirit of vain boasting, but a feeling of honest pride and deep gratification, that the Executive congratulates the members of the Ottawa Women's Canadian Club on the magnificent way in which they have risen to the growing demands upon their time, money and labour during the year just closing. Under the skilful leadership and administration of their President, Mrs. W. E. Hodgins, they have raised the already high standard of this organization beyond what would have been deemed possible in the early days of the war—increasing the number of regular and special meetings, and maintaining thereby the original status as a Canadian Club, while in aid of Canadian soldiers, prisoners of war and those who are suffering in the invaded countries of France, Serbia, Belgium and Poland, the Club's patriotic endeavours have immeasurably increased.

It is interesting to note the steady growth in financial receipts since the outbreak of the war:—Total receipts 1914-15 were \$14,355, which increased in 1915-16 to \$36,547.79, and reached in 1916-17 the total of \$45,835.23.

Sir George Perley has most kindly continued his generous interest by extending the use of the commodious building at 270 Cooper Street as Club Headquarters, and it has been crowded to capacity by willing workers from 9.30 a.m. to 6 p.m. daily, and also on several evenings every week.

In the early autumn of 1916, the details of the administration of the varied branches of work had so increased that weekly meetings of the Executive were found to be imperative, and 43 were held during the present year.

The devotion of the officers, conveners and sub-conveners to the duties—often excessively heavy and responsible—that have fallen to their share, has been most impressive, and to them all should be extended most hearty thanks.

During the first six months of the year the Club was extraordinarily fortunate to have had the efficient services of Mrs. K. N. Macfee as Honorary Secretary, and it was with profound regret that the Executive was obliged to accept her resignation at the end of September, owing to her approaching marriage. Mrs. Thomas consented to act as Honorary Secretary for the balance of the year, and the vacancy thus created on the Council was filled by the appointment of Mrs. K. N. Macfee (now Mrs. J. A. Cameron) thus continuing the Executive as elected at the Annual Meeting. On December 1st, however, the Committee suffered a second loss in the resignation of Miss Edith Wilson as Honorary Treasurer, after two years and a half of invaluable service in this most arduous office. All attempts to persuade her to reconsider this decision having been in vain, her resignation was finally and reluctantly accepted, and Mrs. R. A. A. Johnston, who had withdrawn her name from nomination at the previous Annual Meeting, was appointed to the vacancy and has since filled the office with conspicuous success. Special and most sincere thanks should be extended to Mrs. J. C. Galway, the Honorary Assistant Secretary, who has throughout the season conducted the immense volume of correspondence relative to the work of the various committees with great ability.

The correspondence of both secretaries has at least doubled in volume, keeping pace with the growth of the other activities, and it would have been quite impossible to handle it except with the willing assistance of a number of volunteer stenographers, one of whom has always been available when required. The officers of the club wish to express their grateful thanks to Miss Jean Arnoldi, Mrs. Helmer, Miss Maude Macpherson, Miss Margery May, Miss C. McNicol and Miss Eva Wilson, for their many hours of service, and also to Miss Constance Almon, who with her committee of young ladies has again been responsible for addressing all notices sent to a paid up membership which has steadily mounted from 1,160 in April 1915, to 1,459 in 1916, and this year has reached the amazing total of 1,632.

The Executive wishes to take this opportunity to extend the thanks of the Women's Canadian Club to the Ottawa Electric Company, the Bell Telephone Company, the Post Office Department, the Imperial and Baker's Laundries, for generous services rendered, also to the management and staff of the Chateau Laurier for their unfailing courtesy, to the Trustees of the Collegiate Institute and the Normal School, and to Professor Laing for the free use of the halls under their management on several occasions to Cunningham and Company for their kindness in twice auditing the club accounts, to the many organizations who have given to the club's patriotic work the entire receipts of concerts and other forms of entertainment, to the editors of the local papers who have granted space in their columns, to Mrs. Donald Heins and her orchestra of ladies, and those members of the Club who have assisted at the piano at the regular meetings or opened their homes and furnished the refreshments for the series of bridge parties and sock and money showers that were held during the winter months and which materially increased the funds of the several committees. St. Matthew's Church and the First Church of Christ, Scientist, are regular contributors to the Patriotic Funds, and to these Churches the committees are deeply grateful.

The informal tea at the Club Headquarters, with a brief address, which became a feature of the Club's social side and was introduced during the winter of 1915-16 on two occasions, has, during the present year, been developed with great success, and nine have been held in all—a large proportion during the summer months.

The entente cordiale so happily established last winter with the Men's Canadian Club, has been strengthened during the present season, and through this co-operation our members have been enabled to hear many speakers of high reputation, the risk of heavy expenditure involved in bringing guests from a considerable distance being thus divided between the two organizations. Two large gatherings were held in the Russell Theatre under the joint auspices of both Clubs, and as early in the year the management of the Chateau Laurier found it impossible—except on one occasion—to grant the use of the ballroom on Saturday afternoons, it has been of inestimable benefit to associate the two organizations whenever it became necessary to hold the meetings in the evening.

In spite of the extremely hot weather of last summer, the greatest interest was maintained by all members in the meetings and various activities of the Club as a whole, and in this category must be included a number of entertainments inaugurated and carried out by the several committees.

The first of these was the great Memorial Patriotic Meeting on April 23rd, in the Russell Theatre, on the first anniversary of the Battle of St. Julien, under the joint auspices of the Prisoners of War Committee of the Ottawa Women's Canadian Club and the Madeleine de Vercheres Chapter of the I.O.D.E. General Hodgins occupied the chair, and an inspiring address was made by Sir George E. Foster, which was listened to with close attention and punctuated by frequent applause from the immense audience present. Colonel de Salaberry, who was in the Battle of St. Julien, and Major Ponton, a veteran of the 2nd Battle of Ypres, Festubert and Givenchy, followed with most interesting accounts of their experiences at the Front, paying a warm tribute to the Ottawa soldiers in the trenches and making a plea for more recruits. A special musical programme was provided and much appreciated, and a generous collection was obtained for the Prisoner of War Funds.

Two informal meetings at the Club Headquarters followed on April 24th, and May 17th. The first, addressed by Professor Carrie Derrick, of McGill University, who described the war work being done in Montreal by the women of that city—and the second by Major W. B. Clayton, of the Dental Corps, telling of the great good accomplished by this youngest branch of the Army Medical Work and its pressing needs, if the service was to be maintained and extended as desired. Mrs. Hodgins presided at both meetings and at the close, tea was served.

Through the generosity of the Ottawa Citizen for several weeks following May 16th—on which opening night all receipts were donated—the patriotic funds of the Ottawa Women's Canadian Club received a generous proportion of the profits from the popular Roberson Travelogues, held in the Russell Theatre, which netted the Club several hundred dollars.

On May 18th, a joint evening meeting with the Men's Canadian Club was held in the Collegiate Institute Hall, at which the speaker was Dr. Wilfrid Grenfell, who had just returned from the Front, and dwelt in glowing terms on the marvellous work of the Army Medical Corps. Mr. A. G. Parker introduced the speaker, and Mrs. W. E. Hodgins extended the thanks of the audience.

The first of the Sunday evening meetings at Britannia was neld on May 21st, and took the form of recruiting speeches delivered by Major Burpee, Lieut. Wiser and Corpl. Checkland, all of the 207th Battalion, with a special musical programme and General Hodgins in the chair.

On May 22nd, an evening meeting in the Collegiate Institute Hall in honour of Mme. O'Gorman, representing the French Wounded Emergency Fund, was graced by the presence of Their Royal Highnesses, the Duke and Duchess of Connaught and the Princess Patricia. This meeting was under the auspices of the local chapters of the I.O.D.E. and the Ottawa Women's Canadian Club, Gen. Hodgins very kindly acting as chairman. At the close, after interesting lantern slides had been shown, a collection was taken on behalf of Mme. O'Gorman's work for the wounded French soldiers.

On the afternoon of May 25th, there was an informal meeting at the Club Headquarters, addressed by Mrs. Ralph Smith, who told how the task of caring for the returned soldiers in Vancouver, until work could be found for them, had fallen to the Women's Canadian Club of that city, and described with what success a home for these men had been secured, equipped and maintained by that organization. Mrs. Hodgins presided and tea was served at the close of the meeting.

On June 2nd, the many friends of Miss Winnifred Lewis crowded the Club Headquarters to capacity and listened with interest to her plea for funds with which to establish a new Convalescent Home in England under her management. The Club opened a fund for this purpose with a contribution of \$50.00, and other subscriptions have since been received. Mrs. Hodgins presided and tea was served as usual.

The Sunday evening meetings at Britannia, on June 4th and June 18th, were both of a military nature. Major Williams and Capt. Robins were the speakers on the earlier date with Mr. Machado in the chair, and Capt. Dancy on the latter occasion delivered one of his characteristic and stirring recruiting speeches, Col. Winter presiding.

On June 17th, a Garden Party was held at the Experimental Farm by the Prisoners of War Committee. Tea and ice-cream were served in marquees, a musical programme rendered by the band of the 207th Battalion, and open air theatricals held under the able direction of Miss Olive Garrett. In spite of a heavy shower, this fète was an unqualified success and practically the same programme—with the addition of two artistic dances by Mrs. Brown—was repeated on August 31st, the substantial profits in each case being added to the Prisoners of War Fund.

An afternoon meeting at the Club Headquarters on June 23rd, presided over by Mrs. Hodgins, was addressed by Mrs. Shanks, of Chicago, a charter member of the I.O.D.E. of that city, telling of the work done by the Canadian residents on behalf of our soldiers and the sympathy, kindness and practical help shown by their "American Sisters." Tea was served as usual.

On June 22nd, at the request of the Citizen's Recruiting League, the pregramme for the mid-day meeting on Connaught Place was arranged by the Women's Canadian Club. Mr. J. F. Orde, acted as chairman and Mrs. Brooke, whose elder son is a Prisoner of War in Germany, and Mrs. S. J. McLean, who has four brothers in the Army, made eloquent pleas for new recruits and were followed by the Hon. T. W. Crothers, in similar vein.

The most ambitious venture undertaken by any committee, and which ranks perhaps as the most successful in the history of the club, was the Street Fair on behalf of the Soldiers' Comforts Committee. This event, which was made possible by the kindness and generocity of many residents of Cooper Street in giving the use of their lawns for booths, lasted from June 27th-30th, was an enormous success and added approximately \$5,000.00 to the funds of this very active and energetic Committee.

On July 2nd, Gen. Hodgins spoke most impressively at the evening Britannia meeting, with Dr. J. W. Robertson in the chair. A musical programme of special excellence was given and the collection was in aid of the wounded soldiers.

Capt Woolcombe spoke at the Britannia meeting on July 16th, assisted by Sergeant Morden, also of the 207th, and a number of orchestral selections were rendered.

The Britannia meeting on July 23rd was in aid of the Belgian Relief Fund. The chair was taken by Mr. A. S. Goodeve, and Sir Joseph Pope, with four sons at the Front, made a telling address for the cause of recruiting that Belgium's wrongs might soon be avenged.

The remaining Sunday evening meetings at Britannia were under the direction of Mrs. A. J. Freiman, who arranged to have suitable moving pictures shown with a collection for the Soldiers Comforts Committee.

On August 4th, the rooms of the Club Headquarters were crowded with members at a tea in honour of Lady Perley, who described the many branches of relief work now being done by the women in London, mentioning especially the Maple Leaf Club and the Lady Lugard Hospitality Fund. The money received from the tea served at the close of the meeting, was donated to the latter cause, in which Lady Perley is especially interested.

On Saturday, September 9th, the use of the Club rooms was granted for a Tea and Sale of Home-Made Cooking, in aid of the 5th Pioneers Battalion, and during the following week the energies of all the members were centred in the Club's exhibit in the Central Canada Exhibition.

Immediately following the close of the Exhibition, a vacant shop was secured on Sparks Street through the kindness of Mr. Hiram Robinson, where warm clothing was collected for the fire sufferers of Northern Ontario, and 11 bales and 6 boxes forwarded according to the instructions of the Provincial Authorities, the week being appropriately closed by a Rummage Sale conducted by the Prisoners of War Committee.

This Committee was also responsible for the very successful meeting held at 8.30 on Sunday evening, September 24th, at the Regent Theatre, addressed by Sergeant Gibbons, a returned Prisoner of War—who thrilled an audience of over 1,000 persons with his vivid word picture of the Battle of St. Julien and his convincing story of what the parcels of food and clothing mean to each British prisoner in Germany.

At the suggestion of the President, a "Semi-Annual Meeting" was held in St. Patrick's Hall, on September 30th, at which reports of the work carried on during the summer months were presented by the Secretary and Treasurer, and an appeal made by the President for helpers in inaugurating the more extensive plans necessary for the coming winter. Afterwards, Mme. T. Chase Casgrain, addressed the members on her recent visit to the war zone in France. describing France under war conditions, the generosity of all classes and the splendid work accomplished by the French women, especially in the towns and villages immediately behind the firing line.

On October 10th, Mrs. Hodgins presided over a tea at Club Headquarters at which Mrs. Kennedy gave an account of what was being done by the Canadian Women's Club at Folkestone, and on October 21st, a gathering which crowded St. Patrick's Hall, extended a hearty welcome to Mrs. Herridge on her return from a year's absence in England, and listened with closest attention to her story of the work the Canadian women had done in cheering the spirits and adding to the comfort of the men passing through the Casualty Clearing Station while it was located at Folkestone.

On October 23rd, under the joint auspices of both Canadian Clubs and the two local Chapters of the I.O.D.E., the Russell Theatre was filled to celebrate the return of Miss Kathleen Burke, who in an address of absorbing interest described her visit to the fortress of Verdun, where she had been accorded privileges never before granted to a woman at the Front, and told of the splendid "Canada Ward" at Royaumont, built with the money raised on her former visit to this country. Sir Charles Fitzpatrick very kindly acted as chairman, original lantern slides were shown, and an orehestra of ladies under the leadership of Mrs. Donald Heins, provided a special musical programme, a collection being taken for the work of the Scottish Women's Hospitals.

The meeting on November 4th took the form of a luncheon at the Chateau Laurier in honour of Dr. Catherine H. Travis, who told of her experiences in a military hospital in Serbia, before and after the Bulgar occupation. On the 10th, by invitation from the Men's Club, our members were privileged to hear, in the Normal School Hall, an impressive address by the Hon. N. A. Belcourt, entitled "The Effort of the Entente" in which he dwelt particularly upon his recent visit to the Ypres Salient and the Grand Fleet, and on the evening of November 12th, there was a special meeting, with music, and a collection for Polish Relief held at the Centre Theatre, at which Mr. Andrew Hayden gave a short sketch of the history of Poland and described the present terrible condition of that country.

Two most magnificent addresses followed, both held in the evening in the ballroom of the Chateau, which was filled to overflowing. On November 20th, Sir George Foster, speaking on "Some Glinpses of the War Zone" closed with a powerful plea for more work and more sacrifice on Canada's part, and on November 29th, Mrs. R. W. Reford, under the title "Some Aspects of the War," told eloquently of the sacrifices being made by the women of England and begged that the women of Canada might not fall behind in bearing the burdens demanded of them by the exigences of this great struggle.

Three joint meetings of the two clubs followed. On December 8th, Professor George M. Wrong delivered a most instructive address on "Fifty Years of Confederation." On January 4th, an open meeting was held in the Collegiate Institute Hall at which Capt. Pearson described the great work accomplished by the Y.M.C.A., both in camp and at the front, and in the same hall on January 9th, the members of both organizations listened to a most stimulating talk on "Patriotism" given by Major-General W. E. Hodgins.

The success of the Patriotic Motor Show, which was held in Ottawa from January 15-19th, was largely increased by the efforts of the Soldiers' Comforts Committee, who realized a substantial sum from the proceeds of the entertainment they provided and from the gate receipts.

The ballroom of the Chateau being available on Saturday afternoon, January 20th, a large audience assembled to hear Mrs. John B. Murphy give an account of many personal experiences in her work among the Belgian wounded and refugees in England.

On the evening of January 23rd, the members of the Women's Canadian Club were invited by the Men's Club to hear Major C. W. Gordon (Ralph Connor) speak in the ballroom of the Chateau. He vividly described the ideals for which the opposing belligerents were fighting, and laid special emphasis on the need of unity of purpose.

After a luncheon held in the Chateau Laurier on February ?3rd, the utmost enthusiasm was aroused by a stirring address on "The Work of the Canadian War Contingent Association" by Mrs. McLaren Brown, Honorary Secretary of the Ladies' Committee, in the course of which she paid a high tribute to the care given the Canadian soldiers at the front, and begged that more comforts might be sent them from their homeland and so relieve the Mother Country which was bearing so courageously a staggering burden.

The members of the Club were invited to attend the inaugural meeting of the campaign for raising the Patriotic Fund, held on Sunday afternoon, February 4th, in the Regent Theatre, and addressed by Sir Herbert Ames.

On February 14th and March 1st, two very successful and profitable entertainments were staged at the Russell Theatre, a Carnival de Danse for the Serbian Relief Fund and an amateur vaudeville performance for the Prisoners of War, while on February 15th, Dr. J. W. Robertson spoke on behalf of the French Wounded Emergency Fund, at the Club Headquarters, after which tea was served by the Committee which had been formed to assist in this work for heroic France.

February 26th was marked by a crowded house at the Russell Theatre in honour of Lieut. Zinovi Pechkoff, of the French Foreign Legion, and all listened enthralled to his most original and uplifting story of life with the French Army and what it meant to be held "In the Clutch of the War." Mrs. Hodgins introduced the speaker and Mr. Parker extended the thanks of those present after an excellent series of lantern slides had been shown and a collection taken for the French Wounded Emergency Fund. Mrs. Heins and her orchestra again very kindly furnished the music.

The Hon. Martin Burrell gave a most valuable and helpful address on "Agriculture" on the evening of March 12th, in the ballroom of the Chateau Laurier, to which the members of the Men's Canadian Club were invited, but the meeting arranged for the afternoon of March 31st in the Normal School Hall, was unfortunately cancelled owing to the detention of the speaker—Lieut. R. S. Kennedy—in New York

On March 29th, however, at the request of ten members in good standing, a special meeting was called in the Collegiate Institute Hall to discuss a resolution that the club meetings should be opened with the singing of "O Canada"—a custom which had been discontinued since a referendum sent to all the members in December, had decided by a majority of 145 that only the National Anthem should be sung at the meetings of the club. Mrs. S. J. McLean proposed the resolution, which was seconded by Miss Edith Wilson, and a discussion followed after which a vote of recommendation to the Annual Meeting was taken when an amendment to the proposed new By-law 13 would be decided. This resolution was sustained by a majority of 34. There was an attendance of between 650 and 700.

The second week in April was marked by the last two meetings of the season. On the evening of the 10th, in the Normal School Hall, the Countess Turczynowicz gave a heartrending account of the sufferings of Poland and her personal experiences when held practically a prisoner by von Hindenburg and his army in her own home, and on April 14th the members of both clubs, at an open meeting in the Collegiate Institute Hall, heard from Mr. Edgar Rickard, a member of the American Committee for Relief in Belgium, and Mrs. Charlotte Kellogg, the wife of one of Mr. Hoover's assistants, who had, herself, recently returned to America, an account of the administration of that great Belgian Relief Fund and the work of the Belgian people in assisting to the limit of their personal service and in generous contributions from their slender means.

With a view to stimulating further interest in their scheme for cultivating the vacant lots in the city during the coming summer, the Soldiers' Comforts Committee invited Mr. W. T. Macoun to attend their meeting at 11 a.m. on Wednesday, April 18th, to speak on the organization of a garden, and a large number of members availed themselves of this opportunity to hear such a recognized authority on so timely a subject.

The Executive wishes to extend most sincere thanks to their Excellencies the Governor-General and Duchess of Devonshire for so kindly extending their patronage to many events held under the auspices of the club for the benefit of its patriotic work, and especially to Her Excellency the Duchess of Devonshire for the gracious interest displayed on the occasion of her visit to the Club Headquarters on April 13th.

Upon receipt of the sad news of the death of Her Royal Highness the Duchess of Connaught, the President on behalf of the club cabled a message of sympathy to His Royal Highness the Duke of Connaught, from whom an appreciative reply was received.

It may be of interest to the members to learn of the gradual increase in the number of meetings since the outbreak of the war. In 1913-14, there were 13 lectures, only one of which was held jointly with the Men's Club. In 1914-15, the first year of the war, that number dropped to eleven and none were held in conjunction with the other organization. In 1915-16 entirely apart from the summer Britannia meetings, there were 16 lectures, 7 in co-operation with the Men's Club and also two teas at the Club Headquarters.

The season just ended breaks all records—23 lectures, eleven of them held jointly with the Men's Canadian Club, besides 9 teas and a morning talk at the Club Headquarters. The subjects dis-

cussed have covered all branches of the Club's patriotic work, the speakers with one accord stimulating our members to greater effort and self-sacrifice in the supreme cause of aiding our brave men in the trenches or German prison camp and in extending a helping hand from our own abundance and comfort to those of our undaunted allies who are suffering the dangers and horrors of invasion.

Respectfully submitted,

ETHEL W. THOMAS,
HONORARY SECRETARY.

BELGIAN RELIEF COMMITTEE.

Convener, Mrs. J. L. McDougall; Assistant Convener, Mrs. G. J. Desbarats. Committee: Mrs. M. J. Lyons, Mrs. McDonald, Mrs. Edwards, Miss Janet Idington.

Unfortunately the needs of Belgium are as great as ever, and our Committee hope that so long as the necessity for relief remains, the Club work in this direction will continue. To this end various efforts have been made throughout the year. Boxes have been placed in business houses and offices and these are regularly visited and the contents paid in to the Belgian Fund. The Committee desire to thank all those merchants and others who have helped in this way.

The proceeds of the tea given in honour of Lady Perley were, at her request, forwarded to the Lady Lugard Hospitality Fund for Belgian refugees in London, to which, it will be remembered, a contribution was sent during the previous season.

In response to a request from the Queen of the Belgians, made through the Belgian Consul, a tea and sock shower was held at the Club Rooms on January 3rd, to provide much needed socks for the Belgian soldiers. In all, 629 pairs of socks were forwarded, with one helmet, one cap and one scarf. Through the Belgian Consulate, appreciative thanks have been received in a letter showing how much such comforts are required by the Belgian soldiers. A tea and money shower was kindly held by the Ladies of the Blessed Sacrament Guild, at the home of Mrs. Hickey.

It is interesting to note that regular monthly subscriptions are still received from "Tell You Next Time" and the Committee appreciate most warmly these and all other donations.

The total amount raised during the year was \$2,425.40.

SOLDIERS' COMFORTS COMMITTEE.

Convener, Mrs. T. W. Crothers; Assistant Convener, Mrs. Nelson D. Porter.

Purchaving Committee: Convener, Mrs. Nelson D. Porter; No. yds. 1. aterial purchased, 41,556; No. lbs. wool, 1,760; No. lbs. tobacco, 1,787; No. boxes eigarettes, 13,500.

Finance Committee: Convener, Mrs. A. J. Freiman. Funds to carry on the work were raised by collections at public meetings and stores, Street Fair, showers, Patriotic Motor Show, donations, booths at Central Exhibition, Self Denial Day, etc. Total amount

raised, 1916-17 \$16,167.95; Total amount raised, 1915-16, \$11,676.60. Increase, \$4,491.35. Balance on hand to begin work for new year, \$2,941.29.

Distributing Committee: Convener, Mrs. A. C. C MacIntyre; No. pairs of socks sent overseas to Battalions, 7,495; Comfort Bags, 1,346; Handkerchiefs, 9,526; Towels, 3,427; other articles, 1,913. Total No. articles, 23,707.

Shipping Committee: Convener, Mrs. Franklin Brownell; No. boxes comforts sent through Canadian War Contingent, via Ottawa Red Cross, Militia Dept., and Miss Plummer, 118 boxes or about 7,000 lbs. Value of boxes, \$3,742.46. 2 boxes forwarded to Nursing Sister Goddard, \$200.00; 4 to Capt. C. Sharpe, \$80.00; Total, \$4,022.46. No. soldiers' parcels sent, 2,621; Value, \$4,622.01; Total valuation, \$8,644.47.

Machine Knitting: Convener, Mrs. John Hurdman; No. pairs socks made from June 1st, 1,062; No. pairs in addition for May, by Mrs. C. H. Higgins, 100; Total, 1,162.

Trench Cap Machine: Convener, Miss Mary Mutchmore; No. caps knit for Red Cross, 213.

Cigarette Committee: Convener, Miss Mary Brophy; No. cigarettes made since Nov. 15th, 19,360.

Correspondence Committee: Mrs. T. W. Crothers, Misses Florence Whiteaves, Rose Whiteaves, Florence Burt, Margaret Russell, Mrs. W. Russell and Committee from Women's Branch of Civil Service Association. No. letters sent to soldiers of Canadian Army reported wounded, 61,979, cost of postage on letters, \$813.35. No. letters received from soldiers, 4,094. These letters include many from men of the following nationalities; British, French, Russian, Italian, Serbian, Danish, Polish, Rumanian, Belgian, Greek, Norwegian, American, Indian, Mexican and Japanese.

As a result of these letters about 550 business and personal adjustments have been made and 168 soldiers without friends received special Christmas parcels and many are now in continuous correspondence with the Committee.

Parcel Committee: Convener, Mrs. J. G. Foster; No. individual parcels sent overseas which have been prepared every Tuesday throughout the year, 2,621; average weight, 3 lbs., average cost, \$1.75; Total valuation, \$4,622.01. Amount paid for postage on parcels, \$561.91.

Battalion Committee: Convener, Miss Tillie Bradbury; distributed at stations to Battalions passing through Ottawa for in-

spection: No. cases co'd drinks, 1,000; No. cases oranges, 50; No. barrels apples, 26; No. Daily papers, 4,100; No. magazines, 2,600.

Several boxes of Christmas gifts sent to England to Voluntary Aid Nurses from Ottawa. Parcels of comforts were given each soldier of the 77th before leaving Ottawa, also socks for 207th, and also to drafts of engineers. 1120 Christmas stockings sent overseas, each containing 14 articles. 150 Special Christmas parcels of leather gloves and towels.

This Committee also provided a supper for returned soldiers and supper to 100 men from a recruiting band.

Cutting Committee: Convener, Mrs. Horace King; No. shirts, 525; other articles, 1,340.

Magazine Committee: Convener, Miss Agnes MacFarlane; No. magazines for soldiers passing through Ottawa, 2,600; No. magazines specially prepared for hospitals, 607; books, 52.

Scrap Books: Convener, Miss Winnifred Porter; Scrap books and short stories sent overseas, 1,700.

Mrs. H. W. Bowie, Secretary of Soldiers Comforts Committee, reports: No. members on Committee and workers, 191; No. meetings held, 35; No. Sub-Committees, 14. This Committee provides the supplies on one day each month at the Victoria Station, Free Buffet for sailors and soldiers in London, England. This day is called Ottawa Women's Canadian Club Day, for which special mottoes and flags are used. It has also donated a \$1,500 Hut for the Y. M. C. A. and is endeavouring to support it at a cost of \$75.00 per month. 500 badges were given to next of kin of the 207th, and presented by Lady Borden. A large number of rosettes were made for Tag Day and a small gift presented to each man of 77th Battalion before leaving. A rest room was furnished at Soldiers' Aid Commission, 1,120 Christmas stockings were sent overseas, including 210 Christmas stockings donated to Her Royal Highness Princess Patricia for the P.P.C.L.I. Christmas Banquet was given to soldiers in Convalescent Home, at which His Excellency the Governor General and members of the Military Hospitals Commission were present, donation was made to Returned Soldiers' Association of \$250.00. Large number of letters of thanks were received from soldiers, also from Commanding Officers for supplies of comforts. This Committee is now co-operating with garden schemes to encourage production of vegetables and to benefit fund from sale of same. The balance on hand of \$2,941.29, as indicated in Treasurer's report, seems a large amount, but this Committee requires about 31,500.00 per month to carry on its work without interruption.

It is most gratifying to report that every department has increased the output of supplies many times over last year's work.

The Committee gratefully thank the following for valuable assistance: H. R. H. the late Duchess of Connaught: Busy Bee. per Miss Abbott; Avonmore Patriotic League, Ladies' of Ellwood, per Mrs. Boyd; Civil Service Club, per Miss Russell; Chalmers' Church Ladies' Aid, per Miss Allen; Chalmers Church Y. P. Association, per Miss Tanner; Civil Service Club, per Miss Burt; Daily Vacation School, per Miss MacPherson; Edith Cavell Club, First Baptist Church Ladies' Aid, Glebe Presbyterian Church, Glebe Presbyterian Church Y. P. Association, Congregational Church, per Mrs. Hume; Methodist Churches of city, Invincible Club, Hibernian Ladies' Division No. 3., King's Daughters Guild, per Miss Keenan, King's Daughters Guild, Wakefield, Que., McKay Street Sunshine Club, Ladies of North Wakefield, per Mrs. O'Hara; Progressive Club, Circle of young ladies' from Labour Department and helpers, Daughters of Empire, Almonte; Galbraith Women's Institute, Public Works Department, Post Office Department, Hydro Electric, Ottawa Electric, 207th Battalion, Rotary Club, Signal Corps, Edmondson & Petch, Ladies of Blessed Sacrament, per Mrs. Armstrong; Ottawa Ladies' College, The Good Will Club, per Miss Pitcher; Ladies of Alcove, per Mrs. W. J. Pritchard; Philanthea Club, Westboro, per Miss Moore; Stewarton Church, Y. P. A., St. John's Church Guild, Ladies of Leitrim, per Mrs. Scharfe; Teachers' Association, Miss Smillie's Class, Whatso-ever Circle per Mrs. Biggar, W. S. F. C. Club, per Miss Armstrong; Ladies of Zion Church, per Mrs. Walker; Miss Watson's S. S. Class, Y. W. C. A., Hintonburg; Union Jack Club, per Miss Jack; St. Paul's Society, Mrs. Roche, per Salvation Army; Mr. and Mrs. E. C. Whitney, St. Luke's Church Guild, Knox Church Ladies' Aid, Militia Department, Lieut.-Col. Winter.

Showers: Mrs. J. B. Hunter, Mrs. W. F. Garland, Miss Bradbury, Mrs. T. J. Seaton, Mrs. Geo. McCormick, Mrs. David Ewart, Mrs. W. H. Hasley, and to all the workers who have so faithfully assisted each branch of work during the year.

EXTRACTS FROM APPRECIATIVE LETTERS.

FROM A FRENCH-CANADIAN SOLDIER IN FRANCE.

I have received with very great pleasure your circular letter inviting me to share in the bounty of the Ottawa Women's Canadian Club. Your organization, through exercising its watchfulness over us, brings infallible balm which strengthens the courage so necessary to the continuation of a cause which is very dear to all of us, and which we shall not fail to accomplish.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PARCEL.

My grateful thanks for the splendid parcel received this day. Accept my appreciation, which is all the greater as the contents were just the articles I needed. You will please notice I am again back to the battery, feeling fine. Yours surely is a labour of love which is recognized by all the boys out here.

Again thanking you for the parcel.

WRITTEN FOR A RUSSIAN SOLDIER FROM SOMEWHERE IN FRANCE.

Just a few lines to let you know that Pte. Rucher got the letter that was sent to him from the Ottawa Women's Canadian Club. I am writing this for him. He is a Russian. I read his letter for him, and made him understand it. He is now well and back to his duty, which he is willing to do. Well, he was sure glad to get a letter—the first one he received since he left Canada, and he never gets a box of any kind, but when I get one I always give him a good share. I think if he would get a few eigarettes he would be a very happy man. Well, I will not write too much for the first time. I hope I am doing right by helping him.

RED CROSS COMMITTEE.

Convener, Mrs. Frank Cuming; Committee: Mrs. E. G. Brown; Mrs. Brownlee, Mrs. Batson, Mrs. Bennett, Miss Cuzner, Mrs. Wm. Charleston, Mrs. Desbarats, Mrs. Hamilton, Mrs. Jameson, Mrs. McDougall, Mrs. McDonald, Mrs. O'Dell, Mrs. F. B. Reid, Mrs. Stewart, Miss Sharp, Miss Wright.

The Red Cross Committee, in accordance with the desire of the Canadian Red Cross Society, have this year confined their attention to the cutting and making of the various garments required for hospital use, the materials being supplied by the Red Cross Society. The Committee has cut 9,971 yds. flannelette and 935 yds. cotton, making a total of 10,906 yards. 2,014 suits pyjamas, 1,148 hospital shirts, 162 dressing gowns, 32 bed jackets, 234 day shirts, 228 triangular bandages. 136 aprons have been made under the able direction of Miss Cuzner and the proceeds devoted to the French Wounded Emergency Fund.

The Committee desire most gratefully to thank the following circles and societies for the splendid work done, and donations received: Knox Church Ladies' Aid, St. Paul's Methodist Church, St. Paul's Presbyterian Church, Ladies' Aid Dominion Methodist

Church, Ladies of Unitarian Church, St. John's Church Guild, Ladies of Glebe Presbyterian Church, Young People's Association Chalmers Church, Ladies' Aid First Baptist Church, Ladies of St. Luke's Church, Ladies of the Church of the Blessed Sacrament, Mrs. Scharf and Ladies of Leitrim, Mrs. Boyd and Ladies of Ellwood, Mrs. Graham and the Ladies of Britannia Heights, Mrs. Bragg and the Ladies of Avonmore, Ladies of Lochabar Bay, Central W. C. T. U., Miss Delahaye's Class, Miss Smillie's Class, Progressive Club, Edith Cavell Club, and the young ladies of the Women's Branch of the Civil Service Association.

PRISONERS OF WAR COMMITTEE.

Convener, (until March) Mrs. Coats; Sub-Convener, Mrs. C. J. Brooke; Secretary, Miss E. Inglis; Committee, Mrs. Montague Anderson; Mrs. Russell Blackburn, Mrs. Eric Brown, Miss F. M. Burt, Miss Duncan, Mrs. Percy Edgerley, Mrs. A. J. Freiman, Mrs. Grierson, Mrs. Harshaw, Mrs. Almon Hill, Mrs. A. B. Lambe, Mrs. Machado, Mrs. Maw, Mrs. McLean, Mrs. Meighen, Miss Northwood, Mrs. Odam, Mrs. Ogilvy, Mrs. E. C. Powell, Mrs. D. Robertson, Mrs. W. H. Rowley, Mrs. W. M. Southam, Mrs. C. F. Whitley.

The work for Prisoners of War has grown immensely during the past year. At this time last year the Club was responsible for 91 special prisoners while there are now 233 Canadian prisoners, and under the new regulations, three British and three Belgian prisoners under the care of our Committee.

At this time last year, \$4.00 per month was considered sufficient to provide a prisoner with weekly parcels; now \$7.00 has to be forwarded for each man so provided, which brings our monthly contribution to about \$1,600. Early last summer the Red Cross Society in London decided, in view of the fact that the contribution from Ottawa had been so regular, to allot to the care of the Committee about two hundred prisoners, and it has been their task to secure "adopters" for these men and thus insure the payment of the requisite amount per month. Under the new regulations the Canadian Red Cross Society send to each Canadian prisoner, 19s. worth of food, 12 lbs. of bread, 100 cigarettes and one half pound of tobacco per fortnight. A complete outfit of clothing is sent to each prisoner as soon as his capture is reported. Further consignments are sent as permitted and requested, the outfit being repeated every six months. Any relative desirous of sending money for extra provisions etc. may do so up to the limit allowed for each prisoner, 44 s. of food per fortnight, and the money contributed by men from their own pay is also used for these extras. In additon to the monthly subscriptions and the donations received from time to time, for which the Committee is most grateful, many activities have been carried on under the direction of the energetic convener, and grateful thanks are tendered to all who have assisted in any way in these efforts to aid our prisoners.

A patriotic meeting in celebration of the Battle of Ypres was held in April; two garden parties were given at the Experimental Farm during the summer; a rummage sale, and a meeting in the Regent Theatre, were held in September. Each gave good results, and a large Bridge and Tea, also a Bazaar, given by Mrs. Russell Blackburn were most successful. The sale of souvenirs made from the roof of the old Parliament Buildings realised a large addition to our Fund. The Calendar scheme was very successful, and the sale of Christmas seals brought \$100.00 from the Women's Auxiliary to the Canadian Club, of Boston, Mass. The Committee also participated in the Club undertaking at the Central Canada Fair. Mr. Rupert Broadfoot has most kindly donated the proceeds of the book of poems, "Canada the Land of Promise'," and this is resulting in gratifying additions to the Fund.

A beautiful bracelet, donated by Mrs. Elbert Soper and Miss Grace Barnet, of Renfrew, was drawn for at the Grand Vaudeville, on March 1st, which was the crowning effort of the year.

It is hoped that the coming year will find the Committee still able to satisfy the demands upon it and that the extra prisoners who from time to time appeal for aid will, as heretofore, find the help they seek.

The total amount of money for the year was \$18,881.89, including balance from last year of \$1,446.44..

Last year \$10,150.09 was raised, showing an increase this year of \$7,285.36.

Respectfully submitted.

(Sgd.) MARY R. BROOKE, Convener.

SERBIAN RELIEF COMMITTEE.

Convener, Mrs. C. F. Whitley

The active work for Serbian relief was begun in December, when five different sub-committees were appointed under the following ladies: Mrs. W. J. Carson, Mrs. S. A. Luke, Mrs. Douglas Stewart, Mrs. E. K. Neil, Mrs. A. S. Jost, and Mrs. Simcoe Montgomery. The methods employed were mainly bridge or tea parties, and other like events, and a conspicuous feature of the years' work was the "Carnival de Danse" held in February under the able direction of Mrs. E. K. Neil, and which was a very great success, resulting in a handsome sum and bringing the total amount raised for this Fund during the year to \$2,141.60.

The money is forwarded through the Serbian Relief Committee, in London, Eng., and appreciative letters of thanks have been received.

FRENCH WOUNDED EMERGENCY FUND.

Convener, Mrs. J. L. Potter; Mrs. H. U. Church, Mrs. P. B. Douglas, Mrs. C. Doney, Mrs. J. G. Fleck, Mrs. W. B. Harshaw, Mrs. E. B. Jost, Miss Mothersill. Mrs. C. L. Panet, Mrs. Donald Robertson, Mrs. J. C. Saunders, Mrs. W. Warden.

As the Canadian Red Cross Society found it more satisfactory for their work overseas to have the materials for surgical dressings sent over in bulk, our Red Cross Committee, hitherto working in this direction, turned its energies, in the autumn of 1916, to work for the French Wounded Emergency Fund, which has its head-quarters at 44 Lowndes Square, London, England.

Our Canadian representative on this Fund is Mrs. W. A. Dobell. The delegates from this Fund visit the French hospitals to discover their most pressing needs, and to each is sent, as far as possible, exactly what it most requires. Practically all these hospitals are in dire need of all kinds of necessities, and as many of them were formerly warehouses with no accommodation or facilities for hospital work, money is urgently required for fittings of all descriptions, and especially during the winter months, for fuel. Coal has lately been \$50.00 per ton so oil-stoves have been largely used.

The sum of \$1,284.25 has been raised, of which \$775.00 has been sent by our Committee to the Fund in London, and fifty cases of hospital supplies have been forwarded, a complete list of which will be found below.

Most appreciative letters have been received from Mrs. Dobell, who writes in one letter: "It is almost impossible to understand, unless one has actually seen the conditions in France, the poverty in the hospitals or to realize the extreme difficulty, if not impossibility, of renewing supplies of all kinds." The last cases of supplies, she states, were just in time for the preparations being made for the big offensive in France.

When the garments are cut out in the Red Cross Room in the Club, quantities of clippings are left over, which are made up into rugs. The strips are sewn together and dyed in the Club building and woven by the mentally deficient children of the Cambridge St. School to whose teachers we are deeply indebted for kind assistance. Thirty six rugs have been made and sold.

We wish to thank the Ottawa Branch of the Canadian Red Cross Society for their generous contributions to our work. The Convener also wishes to express her grateful appreciation of the co-operation of the workers.

(Sgd.) GRACE E. POTTER, Convener.

ARTICLES PACKED FOR THE FRENCH EMERGENCY HOSFITALS. From October, 1916, to March, 1917.

388 large dressings, 330 small dressings, 411 10 x 12 dressings, 144 absorbent dressings, 234 eye dressings, 6,932 mouth wipes, 2 T bandages, 5 gauze bandages, 2,504 roller bandages, 213 head bandages, 230 cap bandages, 10 eye bandages, 1,240 sponges, 127 knitted sponges, 614 wash cloths, 168 fracture pads, 15 small pads, 3 knee pads, 383 oakum pads, 170 rest pads, 760 folded gauze, 55 cup covers, 303 hot water bottle covers, 29 bundles old linen, 1 bundle material, 6,500 yds. gauze, 2½ yds. surgeons' lint, 1 cotton ring, 1 rubber ring, 1 pr. large bed socks, 64 prs. bed socks, 1 scarf, 1,029 handkerchiefs, 1 quilt, 4 linen sheets, 4 pneumonia jackets, 2 bed pan covers, 4 vermin shirts, 1 cholera belt, 191 pillow slips, 144 flannelette shirts, 29 pillows, 2 dresses, 2 petticoats, 1 suit underwear, 364 yds. butter cloth.

JEWISH POLISH RELIEF FUND.

Every one now realizes the condition of unhappy Poland where to-day devastation and misery abound on every hand. The only hope of relief for the Poles lies in flight to Russia, where again, unless they are aided by more fortunate peoples, starvation and ruin await them. But to these refugees in Russia, help can be sent through England, and this is what our Committee does. In distributing this relief, no account is taken of race or creed among the recipients, pressing need being the only qualification. The Convener of this Fund wishes to express her grateful appreciation of the efforts made through this Club in behalf of Polish sufferers, and especially to the Women's Branch of the Civil Service for the tea and money shower given by them at the Racquet Court, which resulted in so large an addition to the Fund.

An address kindly given by Mr. Andrew Haydon at the Centre Theatre, was also much appreciated, and a musicale held under the able direction of Mrs. W. H. Brunel, was the last special effort of this years' work.

It is the hope of the Convener that this assistance to Polish sufferers will continue while the need lasts.

The total amount raised during the year for this Fund was \$743.57.

(Sgd.) LILLIAN FREIMAN,
CONVENER.

HOUSE AND TEA COMMITTEE.

Convener of House till November: Mrs. E. C. Powell.

Convener of Tea Arrangements for year: Mrs. Geo. Mountain.

The work of the House and Tea Committee has steadily increased during the year. It will be seen that this is a most important branch of the Club's activities, as the proceeds pay for fuel, repairs, janitor's wages and general upkeep of the building. After paying all these expenses the sum of \$300.00 was devoted to Patriotic Funds in addition to the considerable amounts raised by special teas. The grateful thanks of the Club are due to Mrs. E. C. Powell for her splendid management of the housekeeping; to Mrs. Geo. Mountain for her untiring efforts on behalf of the tea arrangements; to Mrs. R. Masson for her invaluable work during the spring renovation; to all those who contributed so generously, time and provisions, and especially to those ladies who so kindly took charge of the teas for a whole month at a time.

Special teas have been given from time to time, the proceeds of which went to the various patriotic Committees, and on the ninth of October a tea was held to welcome Mrs. Herridge on her return from England. The total amount raised by these means during the past year was \$1,421.32, including balance of \$94.68, and the Committee hope that the members of the Club will continue their generous patronage at the tea hour and endeavour to interest as many friends as possible.

REPORT OF THE PATRIOTIC FUND VISITING COMMITTEE.

Your representatives on the Auxiliary to the Patriotic Fund beg to report as follows:—

Capital Ward, the portion of the city assigned to the O.W.C.C., has been divided into nine districts under the charge of a committee consisting of two ward heads, assisted by seven visitors. Regular visits have been paid to about one hundred and fifty families of soldiers on active service or in training, and a monthly report made of all changes of address, illness, death or any unusual circumstances that may have arisen. The Auxiliary is designed to form a link between the business administration of the Patriotic Fund and the homes of the soldiers, and to keep in touch with conditions existing in the latter. The visitors have invariably been received in a very friendly manner and in many cases have been able to give valuable information and help.

The ward heads wish to express their appreciation of the untiring interest shown in the work by the members of the visiting committee.

Respectfully submitted.

MARION M. UNIACKE, ANNA M. MINNES,

WARD HEADS.

Visiting Committee: Mesdames, Chas. Camsell, Geo. S. Richardson, E. L. Horwood, C. P. Edwards, Geo. H. Flood, H. Stevenson, and Miss Helen Rowley.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE HON. TREASURER, STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS,

RECEIPTS.					
CLUB ACCOUNT.					
Balance on hand April 1st, 1916 \$363 Membership Fees \$1,576 00 Bank Interest 134 42 Receipts from Lectures, Luncheons, etc 401 07 Receipts for Special Funds 294 35	41				
2,405					
PRISONERS OF WAR FUND.	\$2,769 25				
Balance on hand April 1st, 1916	44				
Donations, Entertainments, etc	45 18,881 89				
SOLDIERS' COMFORTS FUND.	•				
Balance on hand April 1st, 1916. \$2,899 Receipts from all sources. 13,268					
RED CROSS FUND.	.,				
Transferred Sept. 1st to French Wounded Emergency Fund: Balance on hand April 1st, 1916. S244 Receipts. 1,039	•••				
House Account.					
Balance on hand April 1st, 1916. \$94 Receipts from Tea Room, etc. 1,326					
Belgian Relief FundSerbian Relief FundPolish Relief Fund	2,425 32 2,141 60 743 57				
	\$45,835 23				

Examined and found Correct.

(Signed) CUNNINGHAM & CO.,

Auditors.

Ottawa, April 18th, 1917.

OTTAWA WOMEN'S CANADIAN CLUB.

FROM APRIL 1st, 1916, TO MARCH 31st, 1917.

			==
DISBURSEMENTS.			
CLUB ACCOUNT. Lectures and Luncheons	598 5		
Exhibition, steneils, etc Duchess of Connaught Gift Fund Clarence House (Waratah)	546 4 200 0 66 0	0	
Lady Lugard Hospitality Fund American Armenian Relief Fund Christmas parcels for Miss Anna Burritt Donation to French Hospitals	5 0 50 0 100 0)))	
" Polish Relief Fund	152 5 246 30		33
Household expenses, including coal, gas, repairs, plumbing, caretaker, etc. Donation to Belgian Relief Fund. Serbian Relief Fund. Polish Relief Fund. French Wounded Emergency Fund.	\$866 64 75 00 75 00 75 00)))	05
PRISONERS OF WAR FUND.		- 1,166	ხნ
Expenditure, including advance payments	\$18,582 23 99 5)	70
Soldiers' Comforts Fund Expenditure. Belgian Relief Fund Expenditure. Serbian " " " Polish " " " French Wounded Emergency Fund Expenditure. Balance in Bank of Montreal to all funds.		- 18,681 13,226 2,366 2,125 742 1,264 3,733	66 01 00 95 55
		\$15,835	23

ISABEL E. JOHNSTON, Hon. Treasurer.

BALANCE ON HAND.

BANK OF MONTREAL.

To (Credi	t Club account	\$240 92	
"	"	House account	254 67	
	"	Prisoners of War Fund	200 16	
"	"	Soldiers' Comforts Fund	2,941 29	
"	"	Belgian Relief Fund	59 39	
"	"	Serbian Relief Fund		
"	"	Polish Relief Fund		
"	"	French Wounded Emergency Fund	19 70	

Certified correct.

(Signed) CUNNINGHAM & CO.,
AUDITORS.

Ottawa, 18th April, 1917.

ISABEL E. JOHNSTON,

HON. TREASURER.

Desk Committee: Under care of the Hon. Treasurer, has for Convener, Miss Isabel Jenkins, and consists of Mrs. Montague Anderson, Mrs. W. H. Askwith, Miss M Askwith, Mrs. Boville, Mrs. Walter Bronson, Mrs. Blackwood, Miss Campbell, Mrs. Jennings, Miss Lockhart, Mrs. LeSucur, Miss MacCarthy, Mrs. Simcoe Montgomery, Mrs. D. H. McLean, Mrs. Norton, Mrs. McWilliam, Mrs. Donald Robertson, Mrs. C. W. Ross, Mrs. F. B. Reid, Miss Stitt, Miss Florence Wilson.

The Convener wishes to thank all these ladies for their faithful work in this very necessary department of the activities of the Club, which entails regular attendance at inconvenient times, each person taking half a day a week; the day being divided into two periods, the first from half past nine to half past one, and the second from half past one until six.

PURCHASING COMMITTEE.

Purchasing Committee: Mrs. N. D. Porter is Convener of this most important committee, and with each Convener, as the occasion demands, purchases all supplies used by the several Standing Committees, subject to approval by the Executive.

HONORARY MEMBERS.

Mrs. J. G. Foster. MME. GOOR. MISS SAUNDERS.

PRESS MEMBERS.

Miss Cornelius. Mrs. Ralph Jones. Miss Murphy. Miss W. O'Connor. MISS SCHRAN. MISS WATT.

LIST OF MEMBERS.

Ault, Mrs. Herbert Almon, Mrs. Geo. Armstrong, Mrs. C. Ed-Anderson, Mrs. Montague Attwood, Mrs. A. E. Anglin, Mrs. Frank Anderson, Mrs. W. P. Anderson, Miss Dorothy Armstrong, Mrs. W. D. Armstrong, Miss Margaret Acland, Mrs. F. A. Abbott, Mrs. G. F. Armstrong, Miss Ida Ashfield, Mrs. K. M. Alward, Miss Lois Arnold, Mrs. W. Argue, Mrs. J. F. Anderson, Mrs. F. C. Armstrong, Mrs. B. M. Arnoldi, Mrs. E. C. Anderson, Mrs. J. M. Aitchison, Miss M. Alford, Mrs. J. N. Asselstine, Miss Helen A. Asselstine, Miss W. Eliz. Argue, Miss Armstrong, Miss E. W. Allen, Mrs. S. S. Allan, Miss C. Alford, Miss V. Askwith, Miss Margaret Askwith, Mrs. William Avery, Miss G. Aitchison, Miss N. Aylen, Miss Florence Anrep, Mrs. A. Von Attwood, Mrs. C. II. Anderson, Miss E.

Armstrong, Mrs. Walter Aylwin, Mrs. P. Armstrong, Mrs. J. E. Archambault, Mme. Armstrong, Miss Edith

Borden, Lady Butterworth, Mrs. J. G. Butterworth, Miss Ethel Brice, Mrs. Edward E. Brown, Mrs. Eric Braden, Miss Nellie C. Braden, Miss Elizabeth Batson, Mrs. Geo. P. Black, Mrs. W. J. Blackburn, Miss Belton, Mrs. C. W. Borthwick, Miss E. Brough, Miss Bogart, Mrs. P. L. Blackwood, Mrs. S. T. Bishop, Mrs. Wm. Blatch, Mrs. Geo. L. Brennan, Mrs. H. H. Brennan, Miss M. Billings, Miss Boughner, Mrs. J. C. Brown, Mrs. J. Bryson, Mrs. John Bell, Mrs. McKelvey Brown, Mrs. A. F. Brooks, Mrs. A. W. Bowie, Mrs. H. W. Brophy, Miss V. E. Burt, Miss F. M. Beattie, Mrs. Wm. Burrill, Mrs. Martin

Bowles, Mrs. Wm. C. Bowles, Miss H. Brown, Miss A. L. Buttler, Miss Frances E. Boyle, Miss Harriet Black, Mrs. T. A. Busfield, Mrs. J. L. Brown, Mrs. Robt. Bayly, Mrs. Geo. Baldwin, Miss Louise Ballantyne, Mrs. H. F. Brophy, Miss May Baker, Mrs. B. Bradley, Mrs. Wellington Bell, Mrs. R. E. Boyes, Mrs. Thomas Beament, Mrs. T. A. Bayne, Miss Buttler, Mrs. P. M. Bryson, Miss A. E. Bach, Miss M. Bryson, Mrs. Geo. J. Blyth, Miss M. Boville, Mrs. T. C. Barber, Miss Barber, Miss D. Burn, Miss G. Ballantyne, Mrs. A. Birkett, Mrs. Thos. Bate, Mrs. H. A., Bate, Miss Winnifred Bate, Mrs. T. C. Bronson, Mrs. E. H. Brown, Mrs. R. D. Blair, Mrs. R. P. Bradley, Mrs. R. A. Berry, Miss Eva Bell, Mrs. Norman Beer, Miss I conora

Beal, Mrs. H. P.

Bryce, Mrs. P. M. Batstone, Mrs. A. T. Bennett, Mrs. O. Biggar, Mrs. Lyons Brown, Mrs. C. H. Beard, Miss M. H. Brownlee, Mrs. J. N. Brownlee, Miss Edythe Baker, Miss A. H. Beddoe, Mrs. C. H. Beveridge, Miss 1. Bliss, Mrs. Alder Brown, Mrs. Gerald Bishop, Miss Florence Bishop, Miss E. M. Byron, Mrs. Alwyn Bearder, Mrs. J. W. Brown, Mrs. E. Geo. Blackburn, Mrs. Russell Bell. Miss Gravson Ballantyne, Mrs. C. T. Ballantyne, Mrs. Arthur Blair, Mrs. S. Burland, Mrs. Geo. Baker, Mrs. C. Ernest Bronson, Mrs. Frank Bolton, Miss E. Broadhead, Mrs. Geo. W. Brownell, Mrs. F. Bedard, Miss Beulah Bogart, Miss Edith Bogart, Miss M. R. Bronson, Mrs. Walter Burgess, Mrs. G. A. Bates, Mrs. C. W. Burritt, Miss M. V. Burritt, Miss A. C. Bradford, Mrs. Edgar Buell, Miss Bingham, Mrs. John Boyd, Mrs. Walter H. Brown, Mrs. J. C. Bartram, Mrs. C. M. Brownlee, Mrs. T. A. Bell, Mrs. Grayson Bailey, Miss A. Bell, Mrs. Robt. Bell, Miss Alice Bell, Miss Olga Bastedo, Mrs. Bell, Mrs. John Buckman, Mrs. Z. B. Blair, Mrs. W. L. Barber, Mrs. H. G. Brooke, Miss Elizabeth

Benson, Mrs. P. H. C. Bishop, Mrs. R. A. Bill, Mrs. J. Philip Burns, Mrs. T. H. Boyle, Mrs. Alex. Brown, Mrs. A. C. Bell, Mrs. B. T. A. Bishop, Miss Nellie Brabazon, Mrs. Claude H. Bell, Mrs. J. Jones Brown, Miss Agnes C. Beeler, Miss L. Bradbury, Miss T. Bradbury, Miss A. M. Bronson, Mrs. Fred E. Brouse, Mrs. Harry Baldwin, Miss H. A. Blyth, Mrs. Geo. R. Blyth, Miss Evelyn Booth, Miss Blythe, Mrs. Albert Burns, Miss Mina Burnett, Mrs. H. W. Bryson, Miss Ella Brown, Mrs. R. A. Bell, Mrs. Clifford Belcourt, Miss J. Belcourt, Miss B. Blondin, Mme. P. Bryson, Dr. Mary Booth, Mrs. C. Jackson Brown, Miss J. B. Bangs, Miss M. L. Brennan, Mrs. Brooke, Mrs. C. J. Bodger, Miss E. H. Balfour, Miss Constance Belanger, Mrs. H. Bethune, Mrs. C. Baker, Mrs. D. R. Birkett, Mrs. T. M. Brennan Mrs. Clifford Buckham, Miss Kate Blythe, Mrs. Thorpe Bolduc, Miss Bourque, Mrs. J. Brodrick, Mrs. A. B. Bance, Mrs. Lucien Brotherton, Mrs. M. C. Bartram, Mrs. W. B. Belisle, Mrs. Brown, i 'rs. Geo. Burstall, Mrs. Baron, Miss Bessie

Botterell, Miss Edith Bonner, Mrs. Jas. J. Beroard, Mrs. Chas. Blair, Miss C. Billings, Miss Braddish Burrowes, Miss

C. Cameron, Mrs. J. A. Cassels, Mrs. Robt. Cassels, Miss M. S. Cameron, Miss A. W Cameron, Miss S. J. R. Cuming, Mrs. Frank Cassels, Miss S. Cassels, Lady Cuzner, Miss Coffin, Mrs. T. C. Chambers, Mrs. A. C. Church, Mrs. H. C. Crewe, Miss Clarke, Mrs. A. F. Cossar, Miss Hester Crothers, Mrs. T. W. Campbell, Mrs. H. S. Cunningham, Mrs. G deH. Clayton, Mrs. E. Herbert Cameron, Miss L. M. Cheney, Mrs. J. E. Cole, Mrs. Edwards Christie, Miss C. E. Chapleau, Mrs. Jefferson Carson, Mrs. W. J. Craig, Mrs. J. M. Crannell, Miss E. Crannell, Miss J. Cox, Miss M. G. Cox, Miss Janet Cochrane, Mrs. W. Cameron, Mrs. R. G. Callaghan, Miss M. G. Cowan, Miss B. Cogan, Miss M. Cunningham, Mrs. T. E. Champney, Miss Code, Mrs. W. J. Cordukes, Mrs. J. P. Cole, Mrs. H. Campbell, Mrs. D. A. Connolly, Mrs. B. G. Christic, Mrs. I. J. Coleman, Miss Lillian Cowie, Mrs. J. J. Cole, Miss Margue ...e Cowan, Miss M. E.

Cluff, Miss E. M. Carmichael, Miss Chadwick, Miss Helen Chadwick, Miss E. Cowan, Mrs. C. Cogan, Miss II. Casey, Miss Magdalen Casev. Miss M. E. Cartwright, Mrs. A. D. Conley, Mrs. Geo. Christie, Miss M. Code. Mrs. T. J. Clarke, Mrs. J. D. Clarke, Miss Dorothy Colwell, Mrs. C. J. Courtenay, Mrs. J. D. Chrysler, Mrs. F. H. Connor, Mrs. W. H. Crocker, Miss L. F. Crombic, Mrs. Copeland, Mrs. Chas. G. Courtenay, Mrs. Chalmers, Mrs. Foster Claffy, Mrs. T. L. Curry, Mrs. Frank Clarke, Miss McLeod Clarke, Miss J. McLeod Campbell, Mrs. W. J. Campbell, Miss Lilian Christic, Mrs. W. S. Craig, Mrs. R. D. Caldwell, Mrs. A. C. Cameron, Mrs. A. Clarke, Miss Clara Charleson, Mrs. W. G. Cruikshank, Mrs. D. P. Coats, Mrs. R. H. Charleson, Mrs. Tom. Craig, Mrs. J. A. Cole, Miss Grace Craig, Mrs. J. E. Constantineau, Mrs. Campbell, Miss E. C Caldwell, Mrs. N. W. F. Caron, Miss Caron, Lady Casgrain, Mme. T. Chase Canniff, Mrs. J. Crabtree, Mrs. B. G. Crabtree, Miss Kathleen Campbell, Mrs. Bert Calhoun, Miss M. Calhoun, Miss G. Curry, Miss Carver, Miss A. M.

Clendinnen, Mrs. T. E. Creighton, Mrs. Avlwin Coburn, Mrs. A. H. J. Caldwell, Mrs. J. E. Conn. Mrs. H. S. Clauson, Miss E. McL. Cameron, Mrs. Douglas Chambers, Miss A. M. Chipman, Mrs. C. J. H. Campbell, Mrs. Alex. Chaloner, Miss Gladys Clement, Miss Cram, Miss Gertrude Craig, Mrs. W. H. Chapman, Mrs. A. T. Coutlee, Mrs. L. W. Corbett, Miss E. Conway, Mrs. M. E. Coombs, Mrs. W. H. Croker, Mrs. E. S. Connell, Mrs. E. C. Colt, Mrs. Conley, Mrs. J. Cochrane, Mrs. Frank Conroy, Miss Bertha Challies, Mrs. J. B. Camsell, Mrs. Chas. Clark, Mrs. Hugh Cromarty, Mrs. W. D. Cummings, Mrs. R. C. Cunningham, Miss M. Cowan, Mrs. A. E. Cox, Mrs. J. C. Craig, Mrs. J. D. Cochrane, Miss Edith Charlan, Madame Catellier, Madame Cameron, Miss Donnelly Chadwick, Miss Ethel Chadwick, Miss Beatrice Cram, Miss Jessic Cameron, Mrs. H. H. Clarke, Mrs. R. A. Coutu, Miss Courtney, Mrs. R. M. Connor, Miss Jessie Crombie, Miss

D.

Dowling, Mrs. J. F. Douglas, Mrs. Walter Desbarats, Mrs. G. J. Durrell, Mrs. A. R. Deroche, Mrs.

Dawson, Mrs. Bell Dougherty, Mrs. C. B. Doyle, Mrs. J. E. Dunlop, Mrs. W. M. Dunlop, Miss Ruth Davidson, Mrs. R. G. Danby, Mrs. J. J. de Renzy, Miss Duhamel, Miss F. Dewar, Mrs. Geo. I. Davies, Miss Edith de Salaberry, Madame Dovle, Miss M. D. Drysdale, Miss S. E. Drury, Mrs. E. H. Dewar, Miss Ethel Dewar, Miss Margaret Douglas, Mrs. Dunnet, Mrs. Devine, Mrs. R. A. Davies, Miss Mary Donaldson, Mrs. Dick, Mrs. Devine, Mrs. F. Dickson, Mrs. W. M. Dalglish, Miss M. Dewar, Mrs. C. P. Dick, Miss Beatrice M. Dick, Miss I. M. Dillon, Miss Lillian M. Dymond, Mrs. J. R. Dickson, Mrs. Jas. Dewar, Mrs. J. H. Durie, Miss I. Daniels, Mrs. Jas. Deacon, Mrs. Daly, Miss M. Dixon, Mrs. F. A. Duthie, Mrs. Wm. Dwight, Mrs. T. W. Donnelly, Mrs. W. L. Davidson, Mrs. S. S. Duff, Mrs. Dunbar, Mrs. R. C. Downing, Mrs. W. A. Duncan, Miss Dickieson, Mrs. M. G. Davey, Mrs. Jas. Dent, Miss Elsie Douglas, Miss L. Delahaye, Mrs. G. Delahaye, Miss O. Davy, Mrs. H. M. Dowling, Mrs. D. B. Dickson, Mrs. L. B.

List of Members-Continued.

Dewar, Miss A. F. Driscoll, Mrs. D. J. Davis, Mrs. W. P. Drum, Mrs. W. A. Doney, Mrs. Dechene, Mrs. A. M. Doherty, Miss Sarah Doe, Mrs. C. Dowdall, Mrs. Dowdall, Miss Duncan, Mrs. Geo. Drummond, Miss May Devlin, Mrs. R. J. Dunne, Mrs. H. R. Douglas, Mrs. C. A. Dewar, Miss Myra Dorey, Mrs. A. Dorey, Miss G. Desjardins, Mine. Arthur Daly, Mrs. T. M. Dewar, Mrs. D. C.

E. Echlin, Mrs. Egan, Lady Ewart, Mrs. D. Ewart, Miss M. R. Earls, Miss M. A. Easson, Mrs. J. B. Edwards, Mrs. W. C. Evaus, Miss Evans, Miss F. Eliot, Miss Majorie Empey, Mrs. Lindsay Ewart, Mrs. J. A. Ewart, Miss Alison Elmslie, Mrs. J. W. E. Ewart, Mrs. Henry Elliott, Mrs. Thos. Elliott, Miss I. G. Elliott, Miss M. R. Earley, Mrs. T. A. Enman, Miss Lina Elliott, Miss Mabel M. Eager, Mrs. D. Eyre, Mrs. W. J. Edwards, Mrs. C. H. Edwards, Mrs. C. P. Edwards, Mrs. Jas. Estabrooke, Miss Eadie, Mrs. R. Evans, Mrs. Robt. W. Edwards, Miss Mary Edmonds, Miss R. Ewart, Mrs. J. S.

Edgerley, Mrs. P. G. Edwards, Mrs. Kemp Evans, Mrs. W. Sanford Eliot, Mrs. C. A.

F.

Freiman, Mrs. A. J.

Foster, Lady Francis, Mrs. B. Fielding, Miss Flossie Fielding, Miss Zillah Forster, Mrs. Fraser, Mrs. A. W. Farrell, Mrs. R. J. Florence, Mrs. A. L. Forsey, Mrs. Eugene Fyles, Miss Faith Fraser, Mrs. J. C. Fleck, Mrs. Alex. Fleck, Mrs. J. G. Fraser, Miss Marion Foot, Mrs. A. G. Fawcett, Mrs. Thos. Fitzgerald, Mrs. Edward Fowler, Miss Fraser, Mrs. H. J. Fortin, Mrs. S. Foster, Miss J. Forester, Miss Edith Fraser, Mrs. A. J. Fraser, Miss Kate Frost, Mrs. S. L. T. Found, Mrs. W. A. Farries, Mrs. R. H. Foran, Mrs. T. P. Freeland, Mrs. E. E. Fairweather, Miss W. Foulds, Miss Fraser, Mrs. J. B. Fisher, Mrs. J. P. Ferguson, Mrs. T. R. Fraser, Mrs. B. H. Fowler, Mrs. Walter Finnie, Mrs. O. S. Fitzpatrick, Lady Fitzpatrick, Miss Fitzgerald, Mrs. Gerald Forgie, Mrs. W. F. Fillion, Mrs. S. O. Fisher, Mrs. Ward Fraser, Mrs. W. A. Farrell, Miss M. Ferris, Miss Florence Fleck, Mrs. A. W. Fleck, Miss

Ferguson, Mrs. Forneret, Mrs. V. Freeman, Mrs. Fitzpatrick, Mrs. W. J. Fitzpatrick, Miss Ilda Fraser, Mrs. John Fournier, Mrs. A. A. Forward, Mrs. A. J. Flack, Miss Catherine Fontaine, Mrs. J. E. Fortier, Madame Ferguson, Mrs. 11, 8, Fellowes, Miss Ottilie Fairlee, Mrs.

G.

Graves, Mrs. Geo. Gibson, Mrs. Thos. Galway, Mrs. J. C. Grew. Mrs. H. L. Griffith, Miss M. L. Gill. Mrs. R. Garrett, Miss Olive Garland, Miss Edith Godwin, Miss Alden Gouin, Mrs. Grant, Mrs. P. Godard, Mrs. H. P. Geggie, Mrs. D. H. Grant, Mrs. Hugh Grimes, Mrs. Phillip M. Gibson, Miss N. M. R. Gibson, Miss I. Gibson, Mrs. Jas. Gibson, Miss H. R. Grant, Mrs. W. P. Graham, Mrs. F. J. Graham, Miss Flo. Graham, Mrs. W. M. Grant, Miss A. I. Grant, Miss J. F. Gould, Miss Helen Goodhue, Mrs. E. Gemmell, Miss A. Greene, Mrs. G. B., Sr. Grimes, Mrs. John Gee. Miss W. Geggie, Miss A. H. Gordon, Mrs. John Greene, Mrs. Harold Grisdale, Mrs. Gorrell, Miss Gordon, Mrs. Asa Griffin, Miss M. Garry, Mrs. Cecil

List of Members—Continued.

Griffiths, Miss Goodall, Miss D. Grant, Mrs. Gordon Garland, Miss Margaret Greig, Mrs. Wilfred Gilbert, Miss Eva Gillelan, Mrs. Gobeil, Mrs. J. E. Gray, Mrs. C. A. Gray, Mrs. T. G. Gray, Mrs. A. Gallagher, Miss Isabel Grant, Miss Lucy Graham, Mrs. Maxwell Graham, Mrs. J. W. Goodall, Miss L. Gisborne, Mrs. F. H. Gisborne, Miss Gordon, Miss Annie Galley, Miss Elsie Gamble, Mrs. A. A. Gullock, Mrs. Greenway, Mrs. J. W. Grant, Mrs. R. H. Griswold, Miss Galbraith, Mrs. R. A. Gendron, Mme. Garland, Mrs. W. F. Grant, Mrs. E. C. Graves, Mrs. Graham, Mrs. Arthur H. Gordon, Mrs. Angus Gordon, Mrs. W. K. Gilmour, Mrs. David Garland, Mrs. J. L. Grange, Miss Helen A. Gilhooly, Miss Beatrice Grange, Mrs. Edward Grierson, Mrs. Frank Gravelle, Mme. J. C. Graham, Mrs. C. K. Gunn, Mrs.R. D. Gagnon, Mdc. J. G. Gilhooly, Mrs. J. Grant, Mrs J. C. Gordon, Mrs. C. Gordon, Miss J.

Н. Hodgins, Mrs. J. J. Hanington, Mrs. Frank Howard, Mrs. S. Hodgins, Mrs. W. E. Hodgins, Miss B. Hallick, Mrs. W.

Hanna, Mrs. J. E. Henderson, Mrs. A. A. Hardie, Miss J. B. Hardie, Miss A. M. Halkett, Mrs. Andrew Halkett, Miss M. T. Holbreoke, Mrs. D. Hall, Miss J. Hazbrouck, Mrs. Lascelles Hannay, Mrs. Hogg, Mrs. W. D. Hunter, Mrs. G. E. M. Honeywell, Miss Hall, Miss Priscilla Heming, Miss F. A. Hill, Miss Annie Hill, Miss Elizabeth Heidman, Mrs. G. Hogarth, Mrs. Hesser, Mrs. J. H. Hill, Miss C. Howard, Miss M. J. Hurcomb, Mrs. J. M. Hunter, Mrs. J. B. Hill. Miss H. Haskett, Miss Hempill, Mrs. Hernance, Mrs. Hunter, Miss Holden, Mrs. Hagerty, Miss Bertha Halliday, Miss Isobel Halliday, Miss J. M. Hurlbert, Miss A. J. Hooper, Mrs. A. Hooper, Miss Dorothy Herridge, Mrs. W. T. Hollingsworth, Mrs. J. B. Harshaw, Mrs. Halpenny, Miss H. Hosterman, Mrs. Heintz, Mrs. R. M. Hill, Mrs. W. B. A. Hawkins, Miss L. E. Hendry, Mrs. W. D. Hume, Mrs. H. E. Harris, Mrs. G. L. Hodgson, Miss Ethel Hill, Mrs. Hill, Miss Bessie Howard, Mrs. L. W. Henderson, Mrs. J. H. Hayes, Miss Hazel C. Holcomb, Mrs. E. F. Holloway, Mrs. Edwin C. Hasley, Mrs. W. H.

Hawkins, Miss Lucy Hill, Mrs. Jes. Hilliard, Miss Higgins, Mrs. C. II. Hamilton, Mrs. C. F. Heney, Mrs. F. A. Hendy, Mrs. C. R. Hogg, Mrs. Fred Holden, Mrs. A. H. Haves, Miss Helena Hay, Mrs. Geo., Jr. Hay, Miss M. Hope, Mrs. John Hetherington, Miss Heming, Miss F. C. Haskett, Mrs. S. W. Heney, Mrs. A. E. Hopkirk, Miss J. Huggins, Mrs. S. J. Horwood, Mrs. Clarence Heron, Miss Hickman, Mrs. Chas. Horsey, Miss Amy Hughson, Mrs. Ward Horwood, Mrs. E. L. Houston, Mrs. Edward Halkett, Miss Frances Harris, Mrs. Dale Harris, Miss Dale Henderson, Lady Violet Hawkins, Mrs. Frank Harris, Mrs. Percy Higginson, Miss Hughes, Miss Nanno Herridge, Mrs. W. D. Hamilton, Miss Hardie, Mrs. Wm. Hoskin, Miss Alice Hillman, Miss Lenna Hope, Mrs. J. C. Huckell, Mrs. John Hay, Mrs. Geo. Haves, Mrs. W. J., Jr. Horwood, Mrs. A. W. Hanson, Mrs. Geo. E. Hunter, Mrs. R. H. Higman, Miss Maude Holbrook, Mrs. Herbert Hay, Mrs. N. Hills, Miss M. Hall, Miss Hill, Mrs. H. P. Hurdman, Mrs. J. F. Hewitt, Miss C

Hinchey, Mrs. E. H. Hooper, Mrs. F. A. Heney, Mrs. F. A. Hamilton, Mrs. Arthur Hewitt, Mrs. Gordon Hardie, Miss Annie Helmer, Mrs. Alfred E. Humphreys, Miss J. C.

Inglis, Mrs. A. Inglis, Miss Edna Ingall, Mrs. E. G. Idington, Mrs. Idington, Mrs. Irvin, Mrs. J. I. Inglis, Miss B.

J.

Jarvis, Mrs. Johnson, Mrs. F. N. Jenkins, Miss I. M. Jennings, Mrs. Jenkins, Mrs. Jamieson, Mrs. Johnson, Mrs. E. V. Johnson, Miss Marjorie Jarvis, Mrs. S. J. Jarvis, Miss B. Jamieson, Mrs. E. A. Johnston, Mrs. R. A. A. James, Mrs. C. L. Jarvis, Mrs. E. F. Jandrew, Mrs. W. C. Jones, Miss Helen Johnston, Miss Mabel Jost, Mrs. A. S. Johnson, Mrs. D. Johnston, Mrs. Jas. Johnson, Mrs. Helen M. Johnson, Miss A. Jost, Mrs. E. B. Johnson, Miss Eileen Johnson, Mrs. D. E. Jarrell, Mrs. J. O. Johnson, Mrs. S. S. Johnston, Miss Vera W. Jeffrey, Mrs. J. C. Jeffrey, Mrs. C. W. Jeffrey, Miss Grace Jones, Mrs. Louis Jackson, Mrs. W. H.

K.

King, Mrs. R. P. Kennedy, Mrs. A. M. King, Mrs. H. P. Kilburn, Miss Jenny Kelly, Miss Kains, Miss L. Kennedy, Mrs. Howard Kingsmill, Mrs. Klotz, Mrs. M. O. King, Mrs. Geo. E. Kydd, Miss Kuhn, Mrs. King, Mrs. W. C. Kirke, Mrs. M. C. Kennedy, Miss A. C. Kennedy, Miss M. R. Kenny, Miss Ethel Kinnear, Mrs. F. H. Kirby, Mrs. Percy Kinloch, Mrs. Emily Keating, Mrs. C. J. Kittson, Miss M. Kains, Miss Z. Keene, Miss Kelly, Mrs. J. H. Kirchoffer, Mrs. N. Kingston, Miss M. C. Keyes, Mrs. C. G. Klock, Mrs. W. H. Kirby, Mrs. Chauncey Klotz, Mrs. J. S. Kennedy, Miss Ann

L. Laurier, Lady Lockhart, Miss F. Lcc, Miss Lewis, Mrs. Hugh Luke, Mrs. S. A. Linton, Mrs. E. Larmonth, Mrs. P. Lane, Mrs. Sanford H. Lambe, Mrs. A. B. Lane, Mrs. J. S. Lloyd, Miss Angus M. Larmonth, Mrs. J. H. Lee, Mrs. A. W. Lyon, Mrs. L. LeSueur, Mrs. E. Lawson, Mrs. Thos. Lambe, Mrs. Lemay, Miss Alice Lett, Mrs. W. P. Leggett, Miss Amy Lee, Miss Alice Lough, Mrs. C.

Larmonth, Mrs. Norman

Laventure, Miss Laura Laventure, Miss Lydia R. Lough, Mrs. D. A. Landor, Miss Lewis, Mrs. A. Goldwyer Lecky, Mrs. W. S. Lees, Miss Living, Mrs. C. E. Lamb, Miss Ethel F. Lane, Miss E. Laidlaw, Mrs. Campbell Loy, Mrs. J. A. Leprohon, Mlle. Lamb, Mrs. J. B. Laidlaw, Mrs. J. H. Lemoine, Miss Loucks, Miss G. H. Lewis, Mrs. T. N. Lynch, Mrs. W. J. Lyons, Mrs. M. J. Labatt, Mrs. R. H. Larose, Mrs. S. C. Loverin, Miss Flora Lanigan, Mrs. J. F. LeSueur, Miss B. Lavoic, Mrs. Louis Loughey, Mrs. James A. Lyon, Miss M. C. Lyon, Miss G. H. Low, Mrs. R. S. LaFleur, Miss Milly M. Livingston, Mrs. T. Living, Miss Ruby Lelievre, Mrs. S. Low, Mrs. W. R. Lang, Mrs. D. Lyman, Mrs. W. S. Lothrop, Mrs. H. W. Lord, Mrs. Ellery Lewis, Mrs. Travers Lyon, Miss May C. Landry, Madame Leggo, Mrs. W. A. Larose, Mrs. J. Dalton

M.

Mills, Mrs. Jas.
Masson, Miss E.
May, Mrs. Geo.
May, Miss I.
Monk, Mrs. H. C.
Miller, Mrs. D.
Morton, Mrs. Margaret V.
Mothersill, Mrs. G. A.
Mothersill, Miss Gertrude

List of Members—Continued.

Mountain, Mrs. Mountain, Miss Edna Meikle, Mrs. R. G. Mabee, Mrs. H. C. Meighen, Mrs. Arthur Machado, Mrs. Meikle, Mrs. J. Musgrove, Mrs. Fred Musgrove, Mrs. J. A. May, Miss M. May, Miss L. Montgomery, Mrs. Simcoe Mutchmore, Miss Macoun, Mrs. W. T. May, Mrs. A. F. May, Miss Marjory Maw, Mrs. S. H. Moore, Mrs. C. Macoun, Miss Mary Murphy, Miss J. M. Macoun, Mrs. Jas. Maxwell, Mrs. A. E. Murphy, Mrs. Denis Masson, Miss E. Marty, Miss A. E. Machado, Miss E. Morgan, Mrs. Geo. Martin, Mrs. Alex. Mortimer, Mrs. A. E. Masson, Miss Jessie Milne, Miss Matthews, Mrs. W. E. Munro, Mrs. John Merrill, Mrs. Milton Masson, Mrs. Robt. Milne, Mrs. J. W. H. Mulligan, Miss D. Moore, Mrs. W. W. Muir, Mrs. Jas. Meredith, liss M. E. Mason, Mrs. Gco. M. May, Miss Marion Menzies, Mrs. Peter Mitchell, Miss J. E. Mitchell, Miss M. M. Masson, Mrs. Chas. E. Millar, Miss M. A. Maunder, Mrs. Maunder, Miss Mohr, Mrs. F. W. C. Moore, Mrs. Arthur Mansfield, Miss M. Minard, Mrs. Dungan McG. Merritt, Miss C. W.

Morrison, Mrs. E. W. B. Masson, Miss M. Masson, Miss A. A. Magrath, Mrs. C. A. Minnes, Mrs. May, Mrs. W. C. May, Miss Lois Munro, Miss M. Morris, Mrs. A. C. Manson, Miss Ethel Muir, Miss Jessie Muir, Mrs. Wm. Metz, Mrs. J. G. Mills, Mrs. Wm. Masson, Mrs. C. J. Masson, Miss Kave Montizambert, Miss T. Mackay, Mrs. A. W. Mulvey, Mrs. T. Moore, Mrs. Chas. Murphy, Miss Ann Marchand, Mmc. Montizambert, Miss M. Matheson, Mrs. R. B. Muir, Mrs. J. A. Mason, Miss Alice Moreland, Mrs. Harry Miller, Mrs. Mackey, Mrs. A. S. Middleton, Mrs. Willie Morris, Miss Marion Mackie, Miss Mather, Mrs. Allen G. Moreland, Mrs. W. J. Maunsell, Mrs. Major, Mme. A. J. Morton, Mrs. J. Roland Mulkins, Mrs. F. C.

Mac-Mc.

MacPherson, Mrs. Duncan MacLaren, Mrs. Harry Macpherson, Mrs. J. E. Macpherson, Miss Maude MacDonald, Miss J. F. MacKenzie, Miss Macpherson, Mrs. M. C. MacLaren, Miss J. MacNaughton, Mrs. J. B. MacWilliams, Mrs. W. MacMurray, Mrs. Jas. MacKay, Miss Margaret MacMillan, Miss B. Macfarlanc, Miss Isabel B

Macfarlane, Miss M. A. Macphersen, Mrs. R. C. MacRitenie, Miss Eva MacPhail, Mrs. J. G. MacLaren, Mrs. J. P. Macfarlane, Mrs. J. F. MacCarthy, Miss E. MacNaughton, Miss S. L. MacLanghlin, Miss MacFarlane, Mrs. I. D. MacMillan, Mrs. Alex. MacNish, Miss A. MacWilliams, Mrs. T. H. MacLaughlin, Mrs. T. J. MacDonald, Mrs. H. D. MacGillivray, Mrs. C. S. MacMillan, Mrs. H. S. MacRitchie, Miss N. MacMahon, Miss N. MacCabe, Mrs. J. A. MacCarthy, Mrs. G. S. MacNeil, Miss J. Macbeth, Mrs. Madge Macpherson, Mrs. M. E. MacLeod, Miss Blanche MacLaren, Miss Jean S. Macpherson, MissM.M.B. Macdonnell, Mrs. G. F. MacDonald, Miss Cassie MacFarlane, Miss A. MacGregor, Miss Grace MacInnes, Mrs. Macfarlane, Mrs. J. M. MacIntyre, Mrs. A. C. C. MacKay, Miss Alice G. MacMahon, Mrs. McLaren, Mrs. A. F. McElroy, Miss Anne McGregor, Mrs. R. McRae, Mrs. J. B. McCloskey, Miss Ethel McDougall, Mrs. J. L. McCaughey, Mrs. S. G. McNicol, Miss Catherine McKenna, Mrs. McLachlin, Mrs. H. F. McGarvey, Mrs. McCormick, Mrs. G. M. ${
m McGirr,\ Miss}$ McGirr, Miss Helen McBride, Mrs. M. A. McOuat, Miss McArthur, Mrs. W. B. McArthur, Miss H. M. McPherson, Mrs. R. S.

McClimont, Mrs. McNicol, Mrs. C. B. McLennan, Mrs. A. H. McKinnon, Miss F. McKellar, Miss McDougall, Mrs. A. H. McEwan, Miss Kathleen McLennan, Miss McDougall, Miss R. McLachlin, Miss M. McKay, Miss Jessie McDougall, Miss H. L. McDougall, Miss G. M. McDougall, Miss S. F. McGill, Miss Winnifred McGill, Miss Iris McCullough, Mrs. A. McClenaghan, Mrs. McIntosh, Mrs. D. H. McLean, Mrs. D. H. McArthur, Mrs. J. A. McKee, Mrs. A. H. McMorran, Mrs. McGill, Miss V. McLaughlin, Mrs. C. B. McKenna, Miss B. J. McLean, Miss C. L. McElroy, Mrs. A. S. McLean, Mrs., Sr. McLean, Mrs. S. J. McOuat, Mrs. McKay, Miss F. McRac, Mrs. Percy McNeely, Miss E. I. McLachlin, Miss K. F. McLean, Mrs. J. D. McLachlin, Miss E. H. McLachlin, Miss E. L. McQuade, Miss E. B. McDougald, Mrs. John McKeand, Mrs. D. L. McOuat, Miss Margaret McKellar, Miss Margaret McKnight, Mrs. J. H. McVeity, Mrs. Taylor McLennan, Mrs. J. S. McCurdy, Mrs. F. B. McIntyre, Mrs. W. H. McGee, Miss Rose McGillivray, Mrs. H. McDougall, Mrs. D. C. McDougall, Miss Florence McDougall, Miss Gladys McDougall, Miss Shiela McDougall, Miss Jean

McMinn, Mrs. W. J. R. McMinn, Miss Pauline McNulty, Mrs. J. J. McCloskey, Miss Agnes McKerracher, Miss Mary McLaren, Mrs. W. L. McGregor, Mrs. McKenna, Mrs. D. P. McIntosh, Miss M.

N.

Northwood, Mrs.
Northwood, Miss M. A.
Nicholson, Miss M. A.
Nicholson, Miss M. A.
Newcombe, Mrs. G. H.
Newcombe, Mrs. E. L.
Nolan, Mrs. F. F.
Nash, Miss R. C.
Nesbitt, Miss E.
Nettle, Mrs. G. R.
Nicholls, Mrs. G. Mackay
Nevins, Mrs. J. G.
Nash, Mrs. Geo.
Nicholson, Miss Helen
Noonan, Mrs. Jos.

О.

Ogilvy, Miss Helen G. Odell, Mrs. W. S. Orr, Mrs. W. A. O'Halloran, Mrs. O'Connor, Mrs.Edward A. O'Leary, Miss O'Boyle, Miss Lottic Orde, Mrs. J. F. () Connor, Mrs. Chas. O'Boyle, Mrs. Walter F. O'Keefe, Mrs. Geo. O'Donahoe, Miss H. Ogilvy, Mrs. G. O'Connor, Mrs. M. J. O'Neil, Mrs. Arthur O'Connell, Miss O'Connor, Miss Agnes O'Connor, Mrs. W. F. Olver, Mrs. E. A. O'Donahoe, Miss J. Ogilvy, Mrs. Wm. Omond, Mrs. M. N. O'Halloran, Miss Monica O'Neil, Mrs. O'Neil, Miss O'Brien, Mrs. E. O'Leary, Mrs.

Powell, Mrs. E. C. Perceval, Miss E. C. Payne, Mrs. J. L. Pratt, Mrs. H. O. E. Pearson, Mrs. C. E. Petrie, Mrs. E. A. Peers, Miss H. E. Porter, Mrs. Nelson Petrie, Mrs. L. Potter, Mrs. J. L. Puddicombe, Mrs. H. Prince, Mrs. E. E. Prince, Miss Rose Perley, Mrs. W. G. Palmer, Mrs. Pinsent, Mrs. Perceval, Miss Mary F. Perceval, Miss Harriet F. Poapst, Mrs. Lorne Pelletier, Mrs. C. Caron Parmelee, Miss E. Proderick, Mrs. A. Powell, Mrs. Fred Pitcher, Miss Powell, Mrs. M. G. Patrick, Miss M. Phoenix, Miss Parmalce, Mrs. W. G. Parker, Mrs. C. A. Pilson, Miss K. Petrie, Miss Marjorie Pickup, Miss Pittaway, Mrs. A. G. Prince, Miss May Pinhey, Miss Parmalee, Miss J. Patten, Mrs. Chas. B. Plaunt, Mrs. Pennock, Mrs. A. W. Pepper, Miss Eleanor Powell, Mrs. W. F. Percival, Miss M. L. Porter, Mrs. Howard S. Parker, Miss Grace Pirrie, Mrs. N. W. Powell, Mrs. Berkeley Parmalce, Mrs. C. H. Parmalce, Miss Ruth Pepper, Miss Edith Philpot, Mrs. H. S. Parmalce, Miss Gertrude Parr, Mrs. Jas. A. Patching, Mrs. R. Potter, Miss

P.

Pope, Lady Pepper, Mrs. C. Panet, Mrs. C. L. Persse, Mrs. R. Percival, Mrs. T. H. Palmer, Mrs. L. T. Pennington, Mrs. W. Pearson, Mrs. Ralph Powell, Mrs. Robt. Putman, Miss L. Putman, Mrs. Pinard, Mrs. Porter, Miss W. Pratt, Miss L. B. Parker, Mrs. J. L. Polardy, Mme. H. Powell, Miss Polkinghorne, Mrs. J. A. Pitts, Mrs. H. H.

Q. Quinn, Miss M.

Reid, Miss Elizabeth J. Reid, Mrs. J. D. Ross, Mrs. P. D. Robertson, Miss Jean Rosenthal, Mrs., Sr. Rosenthal, Mrs. S. Roper, Mrs. G. C. Raitt, Mrs. Jas. Roche Mrs. Robertson, Mrs. Donald Rourke, Mrs. Ross, Miss C. Read, Mrs. Chas. E. Ross, Miss M. McLeod Richardson, Mrs. Reynolds, Mrs. F. C. Reynolds, Miss M. E. Roger, Miss A. J. Reid, Mrs. F. B. Reid, Mrs. Percy Robertson, Mrs. John Russell, Miss Russell, Miss M. C. Russell, Miss M. I. Reid, Miss Rothwell, Miss Ross, Mrs. C. W. Robinson, Miss L. Rowan-Legg, Mrs. Aubry Rogers, Mrs. Robt. Roberts, Miss Winnifred Reade, Mrs. Edgar

Ridout, Miss Rowley, Miss H. Reid, Miss Ray, Mrs. C. C. Ross, Mrs. LeBreton Robinson, Mrs. Blackett Robinson, Miss Marion Rainboth, Mrs. E. J. Robertson, Miss Olive Robertson, Miss Queenie Rowatt, Mrs. H. H. Robertson, Miss M. A. Rorke, Miss Jean Runions, Miss M. C. Rogers, Mrs. C. C. Richardson, Mrs. R. T. Reid, Mrs. Lyle Robertson, Miss Helen Robertson, Mrs. Blake Ruddick, Mrs. Robertson, Mrs. E. S. Robertson, Miss Jean Rudman, Miss Reiffenstein, Mrs. Reiffenstein, Miss Rogers, Mrs. Gordon Rodd, Mrs. J. A. Robertson, Mrs. W. Ross, Mrs. G. Reynolds, Miss G. B. Rowley, Mrs. W. H. Reynolds, Miss Maude Rutherford, Mrs. M. R. Robertson, Mrs. W. S. Robert, Miss Rose Ratz, Mrs. J. H. Robertson, Mrs. David Radeliffe, Mrs. John Reade, Mrs. Bolton Rankin, Miss Elsie Ross, Miss Charlotte Ross, Mrs. Moffat Robertson, Mrs. J. W. Robinson, Miss K. B. Rankins, Miss J. A. Ross, Mrs. Walter M. Ritchie, Miss Grace Rochester, Mrs. J. L. Rivers, Mrs. Victor Rhodes, Mrs. Edgar Ritchie, Mrs. Philip

S. Sparling, Mrs. Scobell, Mrs. J. H.

Slattery, Mrs. Bernard Start, Miss Isabel Smith, Mrs. L. A. Slater, Mrs. R. N. Sinclair, Mrs. Sinnamon, Mrs. Sharpe, Mrs. O. H. Shiels, Miss E. E. Scott, Miss Mary Mackay Savage, Mrs. F. Smith, Miss M. J. Singleton, Mrs. J. F. Selleck, Mrs. Somerville, Mrs. J. M. Smith, Mrs. C. Smith, Miss W. Smith, Mrs. E. J. Scott, Mrs. D. C. Smith, Miss E. Scott, Miss Elmira B. Spittal, Mrs. C. D. Scott, Miss Mary E. Stewart, Mrs. Douglas Smillie, Mrs. Smillie, Miss Sutherland, Miss Shortt, Mrs. Adam Scott, Miss M. Smith, Miss Clarice Small, Mrs. W. R. Saunders, Mrs. J. C. Stewart, Miss C. Slattery, Mrs. J. J. Storey, Miss M. Simmons, Mrs. T. L. Steers, Mrs. Cornell Southam, Mrs. W. M. Stuart, Mrs. C. Sutcliffe, Miss E. C. Sutherland, Mrs. C. D. Smith, Mrs. Harlan I. Stanley, Mrs. Summers, Mrs. A. V. Soloman, Miss Speck, Mrs. Sheppard, Mrs. N. B. Spittal, Miss Dais" Stratton, Miss Lily Stratton, Miss May Stewart, Mrs. R. E. Scott, Mrs. T. S. Shore, Miss Gertrude Semple, Miss Shaver, Miss Eva A.

Sharp, Miss B. Sharp, Miss F. Smith, Miss Isabel B. Smith. Miss Marion Selwyn, Mrs. Percy Simpson, Mrs. Geo. Spencer, Miss J. Surgenor, Miss Shore, Miss E. Stewart, Miss I. Shortt, Miss M. Sladen, Mrs. A. F. Smith, Mrs. I. G. Spence, Mrs. C. F. Sharpe, Mrs. John Stewart, Mrs. W. J. Stewart, Miss Avis Stronach, Mrs. R. S. Stronach, Miss Sinclair, Miss Margaret Shore, Miss Frances Smith, Miss Elizabeth Schreiber, Lady Stewart, Mrs. Gordon Short, Mrs. S. Spence, Miss Ethel Sutherland, Mrs. E. V. Saunders, Mrs. C. E. Stitt, Miss Edith M. Stitt, Miss Irene G. Smith, Mrs. C. B. Stanley, Mrs. L. E. Spangenberg, Mrs. Sykes, Mrs. W. J. Short, Miss Dorothy Snelling, Mrs. T. E. Sparks, Mrs. R. Smith, Mrs. C. S Simpson, Mrs. J. B. Smith, Miss M. Stewart, Mrs. S. Shaver, Mrs. A. E. Sheritt, Miss H. Saunders, Miss Smith, Miss Marcus Spearman, Mrs. W. O. Smith, Mrs. Lenox Shaver, Mrs. P. H. Scott, Mrs. Wm. Scott, Miss Edith Scott, Mrs. Chas. Sparks, Miss S. St. Dennis, Mrs. K. Shepard, Mrs. T. W. Smart, Mrs. Russell

Serocold, Mrs. Sherwood, Lady Scott, Mrs. W. L. Sears. Mrs. Staunton, Mrs. S. P. Seaton, Mrs. T. J. Shaw, Miss A. L. Swabey, Mrs. H. W. B. Scarth, Mrs. W. B. Shillington, Mrs. A. T. Steckel, Mrs. R. Smith, Miss Lila Sampson, Mrs. R. K. Sherwood, Mrs. E. S. Scott, Miss Maude Sibbitt, Mrs. R. A. Scott, Mrs. J. G. Snowdon, Mrs. Somerville, Miss Olga Simms, Mrs. Richard Skinner, Mrs. Harry Strachan, Mrs. Wm. Simpson, Mrs. A. Scott, Mrs. D'Arcy Swan, Mrs. Stitt, Mrs. S. Snelling, Miss Edna L. Scott, Mrs. Geo. I. Stewart, Miss Della Stuart, Mrs. F. A. Sims, Mrs. Fred Smith, Miss Laura Stothers, Mrs. R. S. Stothers, Miss Laura Stothers, Miss Freda Sutherland, Miss M. J. Smeaton, Mrs. M. Sharples, Mrs. Jack Scott, Miss J. Seybold, Mrs. Edward Swan, Mrs. P.

T.
Thoburn, Mrs. A. H.
Thomas, Mrs. Herbert
Topley, Mrs. de Courcy
Taylor, Mrs. E. L.
Tavernier, Mrs.
Tavernier, Mrs. Ida
Tilton, Mrs. John
Thompson, Mrs. S. C.
Tobey, Mrs. Wm. M.
Tomkins, Miss E. A.
Theobald, Mrs.
Thompson, Miss R.

Thorburn, Mrs. C. H. Thackeray, Miss A. E. Thackray, Mrs. Taplin, Mrs. H. Telford, Mrs. Robt. Taylor, Miss H. M. Turnbull, Miss Margaret J Turnbull, Miss Martha Tabb, Mrs. S. J. Tulley, Mrs. Chas. J. Taschereau, Mrs. E. Thorne, Mrs. Thompson, Mrs. J. Thompson, Mrs. G. F. Trumpour, Mrs. G. Tennant, Mrs. E. Troop, Mrs. A. G. Thompson, Miss I. Tremaine, Mrs. A. Thackray, Miss Fay Taunton, Miss Leslie Taillon, Mrs. Geo. Throop, Mrs. Arthur Troy, Miss Mayme Turnbull, Miss S. E. Thompson, Mrs. J. W. Tremaine, Mrs. H. S. Todd, Miss Alice Taylor, Mrs. L. F. Tibbitts, Mrs. A. R. Topley, Mrs. W. J. Torrance, Mrs. Thompson, Miss Thompson, Miss Mabel

U. Uniacke, Mrs. Usher, Miss Tena

Vennor, Miss G. E. Vipond, Miss Verrett, Mrs. Hector Verner, Mrs. J. W. D.

W.
Whitney, Mrs. E. C.
Wilson, Mrs. W. F.
Wilson, Miss E.
Walsh, Miss Mary
Wilson, Mrs. J. A.
Wade, Mrs. A. R.
Wright, Miss Rosa
Wright, Mrs. G. C.
Wainwright, Miss R.

Waddell, Miss K. T. White, Miss E. J. Workman, Mrs. Alec. Walker, Mrs. Whelan, Mrs. C. M. Wadsworth, Miss E. Walsh, Miss A. Winter, Mrs. Chas. Wilson, Miss Marjorie Wilson, Mrs. W. T. Wilson, Miss Wilson, Mrs. F. J. Wilson, Miss Florence White, Miss Laura Wilson, Mrs. N. T. Williams, Mrs. Frank Wheeler, Mrs. M. P. Wilson, Mrs. Omar Whimster, Miss Wilson, Mrs. John Winthrop, Miss Winnifred Watt, Miss Bessie Workman, Mrs. T. Warne, Miss A. M. Wattman, Mrs. Geo. Waggoner, Mrs. Stephen Watson, Mrs. Robt.

CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY.

Wadsworth, Mrs. Wright, Miss Frances A. Woollcombe, Mrs. Wilson, Miss Lola C. White, Mrs. Thos. Williams, Mrs. Wickware, Miss Alice S. Wallace, Miss Bertha Whiteaves, Miss F. Whiteaves, Miss Rose Winters, Mrs. W. R. Wait, Mrs. F. G. Willoughby, Mrs. S. J. Willoughby, Miss A. M. Wicksteed, Miss Wicksteed, Miss L. C. Wicksteed, Miss W. Whyte, Mrs. R. B. Warnock, Mrs. D. Woodruffe, Mrs. H. B. Wylie, Mrs. W. W. Wurtele, Mrs. West, Mrs. A. B. Weilbrenner, Miss J. Wright, Miss C. Watterson, Mrs. T. A. Wood, Mrs. Arthur

Wainwright, Mrs. G. C. Wainwright, Miss M. Whelen, Mrs. P. Watson, Miss Anne Watson, Mrs. J. B. Wakely, Mrs. L. A. Wilson, Mrs. Norman F. Whitley, Mrs. C. F. White, Lady Warnock, Mrs. R. Wreyford, Miss D. D. White, Miss Annie Wingard, Miss K. Walsh, Mrs. E. J. Wagner, Miss Sadie Wise, Miss Watterson, Miss F. G.

Young, Mrs. G. M. Yorke, Mrs. Yorke, Miss Lorena Yorke, Miss Eleanor Young, Mrs. G. Albert Yeates, Miss A. R.

